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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a

liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole

or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this

report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year

ended 31 March 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

2013/14 was a challenging year for the Group. The Group
successfully spun-off the pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution
and pharmaceutical retail chain business operated under the
Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia Group”) on 10 October
2013.

During the year, the Group continued to see increase in our
revenue owing to the increasing market demand for the provision
of general hospital services and pharmaceutical products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Turnover of the Group for
the year was approximately HK$2,243.159 million in comparison
with approximately HK$2,020.589 million in 2013. The gross
profit of the Group was approximately HK$269.003 million in
comparison with approximately HK$238.862 million in 2013.

The net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
was approximately HK$21.913 million in comparison with
approximately HK$42.740 million in 2013. The noticeable
decrease was mainly related to (1) the expenses incurred in the
Group’s spun-off project, and (2) the loss on the early redemption
of promissory note. By excluding such effect from the loss on
early redemption of promissory note and the related expenses
incurred for the Group's spin-off project, the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company yielded a decrease of approximately
18.47% compared to that of 2013 due to the reduction of the
Company’s equity interest in the pharmaceutical wholesale and
pharmaceutical retail business operated under the Wanjia Group
(From approximately 100% to approximately 63.53% immediately
upon completion of the Distribution on 10 October 2013).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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OPERATION REVIEW
During the year ended 31 March 2014, all in all, amid the
challenging environment, the Group has maintained its growth

momentum.

Since 2013, we have witnessed further loosening-up on the
control over the healthcare in China, especially on the favorable
policy of attracting private investments on the expansion of
hospital services. The continuous demands for quality healthcare
services and pharmaceutical products sustain the robust growth
fuelled by various favorable factors, such as the opening of the
rights for price adjustments by the non-state owned businesses,
increasing the coverage of the services by the 3rd party insurance
companies, strong growing trends for high-end hospital services,
and the rise in per capita funding standards for medical insurance,
the acceleration in urbanization and the ageing of China’s

population.

Therefore, we believe that the healthcare services and
pharmaceutical industry will maintain their upward trend in
2014/15 as well as throughout the whole period of “12th Five-
Year Plan”. By leveraging the sales and marketing capabilities,
optimized and high quality product mixes, experienced and
professional management team, as well as its dedicated staff,
we are optimistic to begin with the year 2014/15 for the future

development.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank for the kind support
from our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders.
| also take this opportunity to thank our colleagues on the Board
and the staff of the Group for their diligent work, loyal services

and contributions offered.

Yung Kwok Leong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESwRETH

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2014 is as follows:

o Total turnover was approximately HK$2,243.159 million
(2013: approximately HK$2,020.589 million), representing
approximately 11.02% of growth over 2013. The rise in
the turnover was driven by the increase demand for the
provision of general hospital services and the sales from the
pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical

retail chain businesses in the PRC.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$269.003 million (2013:
approximately HK$238.862 million), with gross profit margin

maintained at a similar level as 2013.

o Net profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$21.913 million (2013: approximately
HK$42.740 million), representing approximately 48.73%
decrease as compared to the previous year. The decrease
was mainly contributed by (1) the loss on early redemption
of promissory note, and (2) the related expenses incurred
for the Group’s spin-off project of approximately HK$4.755
million. By excluding such effects, the Group recorded a
decrease in profit attributable to the owners of the Company

of approximately 18.47% compared to last year.

This decrease was due to the reduction of the Company’s
equity interest in the pharmaceutical wholesale and
pharmaceutical retail business operated under Wanjia
Group (from approximately 100% to approximately 65.53%
immediate upon completion of the distribution on 10
October 2013) and in turns results in deduction of the profit

attributable to owner of the Company.

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC.

The Group successfully spun-off the pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business operated
under the Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia Group”) on
10 October 2013.

Turnover

Looking back at 2013/14, the Group’s revenue experienced
steady growth. The Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$2,243.159 million (2013: approximately HK$2,020.589
million) for the year ended 31 March 2014, accounting for an
increase of approximately 11.02% over last year. The gross profit
margin of the Group was approximately 12%, which maintained

at a similar level as in 2013.

General hospital services

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group operated
two general hospitals in Chongging and Jiaxing and managed
one general hospital in Zhuhai city, principally engaged in the
provision of general hospital services, including but not limited to
medical wards, surgical wards, cosmetic surgery, dermatology and
medical checkup and examination. The management envisions
more diversified hospital services readily available to satisfy various
needs of the public in the next few years, from the common
illness treatments to the care of special and difficult disease.
Therefore the Group will continue to allocate resources to develop
those services either from our existing hospitals or through
collaboration. The turnover generated from general hospital
services amounted to approximately HK$150.685 million (2013:
approximately HK$141.525 million), representing a steady increase

of approximately 6.47% over last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRETH

Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses

The Group engages in the wholesale, distribution of a board range
of pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and pharmacies
in Fujian Province, the PRC through its subsidiary — Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited. The Group’s pharmaceutical retail chain
operation has maintained the leading position in both retail
drug store numbers and comprehensive competitiveness within
Fujian Province, as ranked by the independent associations in the
PRC. The Group continues to allocate resources and to look for
business opportunities to expand the pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and retail chain businesses. Turnover generated from
pharmaceutical wholesales, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business amounted to approximately HK$2,092.474
million (2013: approximately HK$1,879.064 million), representing
approximately 11.36% of growth over 2013 and accounted for
approximately 93% of the Group’s turnover. The increase was
primarily due to the broadened revenue base from a further

diversified product portfolio.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including exhibition income, rental
income, interest income from bank deposits and interest income
from loan receivables, amounted to approximately HK$10.258
million (2013: approximately HK$10.376 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2014, which maintained at similar level as in
2013.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1)
salaries and wages of sales and marketing personnel, (2) rental
expenses and (3) transportation expenses. For the year ended
31 March 2014, selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately HK$94.873 million (2013: approximately
HK$79.677 million), representing an increase of approximately
19.07% over the same period of last year. More selling and
distribution expenses incurred due increase in both the number
of sales and marketing personnel employed by the Group and the

number of retail pharmacies during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to approximately HK$92.316 million (2013:
approximately HK$86.354 million), representing an increase of
approximately 6.90% over last year. The increment was mainly
contributed by the Group’s spin-off project expenses and the

expansion of the Group’s scale of operation.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$10.493 million (2013: approximately
HK$10.288 million), representing an increase of approximately 2%

over the last year.

This is due to the combine effect of decrease of finance costs
incurred as a result of early redemption of the promissory note
and increased average outstanding amounts of bank loan during

the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRETH

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a net profit attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$21.913 million (2013:
approximately HK$42.740 million), representing approximately
48.73% decrease as compared to the previous year. The decrease
was mainly contributed by (1) the loss on early redemption of
promissory note and (2) the related expenses incurred for the
Group's spin-off project of approximately HK$4.755 million. By
excluding such effects, the Group recorded a decrease in profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
18.47% compared to last year.

This decrease was due to the reduction of the Company’s equity
interest in the pharmaceutical wholesale and pharmaceutical retail
business operated under Wanjia Group (from approximately 100%
to approximately 65.53% immediate upon completion of the
distribution on 10 October 2013) and in turns results in deduction
of the profit attributable to the owner of the Company.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

Since the State Council of PRC released its guidance on the
development of the healthcare services in China on Oct 14, 2013,
we have seen more concrete measures released by different levels
of the government to further implement the opening policy of
attracting social investments from both home and abroad. One
significant step is to loosen up the price control over the services
provided by the private hospitals in China, thus further stimulating
the interest in expanding hospital services. The latest healthcare
statistics published by the government show that while the public
funding have been on hold to build up more hospitals, the private
hospitals have increased significantly comparison with what
it was a year ago. At the same time, services provided by the
private hospitals have been well recognised by the public as being
supplementary to the basic services by the state owned hospitals.
The role of private hospitals is seen as more important as the
public hospitals in terms of delivering the needed services.

The management of the Group believes that the changing
healthcare industry has provided ample opportunities for further
expansion, especially in the provision of general hospital services
and premium specialized services as well. Therefore, the Group
will positions itself as one of the first premium healthcare
providers in the mainland China and add more resources to
strengthen its branding and networks.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the hospitals, while we are adjusting our marketing strategies
to address the ever increasing needs for quality services, we also
continue to seek opportunities to participate in the expansion
of the private hospitals and the reform of the public hospitals
as well. In addition to cultivating the new services implemented
at the hospitals, the management has focused on the improved
delivery procedures and patient oriented care. Our hospitals have
well established themselves in their each local market in the
both brands and competitiveness. The challenge to a steady and
more profitable growth is to strengthen the brands by increasing
patients’ satisfaction and adapting the affordable quality service
approaches. All of those will help the hospitals achieve further

penetration into the fast growing healthcare market.

The new financial year 2014/15 is considered as a year when the
healthcare expenditures and services are to grow in line with the
economic development in China. This special time sets up the path
for the Company to further explore the potential in China and
also will witness the noticeable outcomes of the Hua Xia branding,
representing the quality, accessibility and credibility in the local
markets from Chongqing to lJiaxing of Jiangsu. The healthcare
reform will also produce the tangible economic results for those
who have long invested in the services, education, quality and

trust.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$92.418 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$79.980 million).

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$773.575 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$713.503 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$410.818 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$394.746 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 1.883 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: approximately
1.807).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESwRETH

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’'s gearing ratio was
approximately 13% based on outstanding debts (comprising bill
payables, bank borrowings, convertible note and promissory note)
less cash and cash equivalents over total equity (including all
capital and reserves of the Group) (2013: approximately 18%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group had no material capital
commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the
Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that
the Group’s risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bill payables of approximately
HK$88.088 million and HK$36.070 million respectively. The
Group's pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment properties of approximately HK$17.431 million,
HK$1.979 million and HK$8.306 million respectively were pledged

as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) provision of general hospital services and
(2) pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain businesses. Financial information in respect of these
operations is presented in Note 6 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2014, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$17.562 million (2013:
approximately HK$11.824 million) divided into 1,153,488,264
ordinary shares and 602,701,680 non-voting convertible
preference shares (2013: 1,083,938,264 ordinary shares and
98,500,000 non-voting convertible preference shares) of HK$0.01
(2013: HK$0.01) each.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 1,720 (2013: 1,754) full

time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRETH

For the year ended 31 March 2014, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$99.507 million
(2013: approximately HK$91.843 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC. The Group
also adopted employee share option scheme to provide eligible
employees a performance incentive for continuous and improved
services with the Group and to enhance their contributions to
increase profits by encouraging capital accommodation and share

ownership.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Disposal of convertible preference shares by
substantial shareholder

On 24 April 2014, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”) and a
purchaser, entered into an agreement pursuant to which Mr. Yung
agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to purchase, 343,217,539
convertible preference shares of the Company for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$96,101,000. The agreement is

unconditional and is signed and completed simultaneously.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 24 April 2014.

Issue of ordinary shares in respect of exercise of share
options

On 4 April 2014, 3,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each have been issued in respect of the exercise of

3,900,000 post-listing share options.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Completion of the proposed acquisition

On 9 April 2014, Wanjia Group, Wanjia Group's wholly owned
subsidiary (the "Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen)
Company Limited (former name as Xiamen Hui Sheng Yi
Yao Company Limited), a PRC pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution corporation, entered into an arrangement agreement
in relation to the conditional acquisition of 60% of net assets
value of Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Company Limited (the
“Proposed Acquisition”) by the Purchaser. The consideration
for the acquisition is approximately RMB4.945 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$6.204 million). Upon completion of the
Proposed Acquisition, Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Company
Limited will become a 60% owned subsidiary of the Purchaser.
The acquisition was completed on 23 April 2014 with all the
conditions precedent under the arrangement agreement being
fulfilled.

After the acquisition, Wanjia Group has engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to measure the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment on the completion date. Since the
valuation is still in progress, Wanjia Group is unable to measure
any possible goodwill or gain from bargain purchase as at the date
of completion. Therefore, the directors considered that it is not
practicable to disclose the financial information of Hui Hao Yi Yao

(Xiamen) Company Limited on the completion date at this stage.

Legal proceedings

On 12 April 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Wanjia
Group as plaintiff initiated legal proceedings against a customer
at the People’s Court of Minhou County for a sale and purchase

agreement, in which the amount is not material.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, there was no other significant event took

place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EEREREEAESHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”), aged 49, the Chairman of
the Board, being a registered economist in the Fujian Province in
the PRC, has over 20 years’ experience in corporate management
and investment in the healthcare and pharmaceutical sectors
in the PRC. Mr. Yung is currently the vice president of China
Federation of Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs and Xin Jiang
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, Fujian Committee of
Chinese Political Consultative Conference, executive chairman of
the strategic Alliance for the Medical & Healthcare Industry of
China as well as the chairman of Hong Kong Putian Co. and the
honorable chairman of Hong Kong Puxian Native Association. Mr.
Yung was appointed as an executive director of the Company,
the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 2 March 2005, 29 April 2005 and 26 March 2010
respectively.

Dr. Jiang Tao (“Dr. Jiang”), aged 58, holds a degree of doctor
of audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences of AT
Still University in the United States and two master’s degrees in
audiology and in special education from Lamar University of Texas
in the United States. He served as senior management in several
enterprises in the United States, Canada and the PRC with over
17 years of experience in senior management, consultancy and
investment in the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and the United States.
Dr. Jiang has also established six enterprises in the PRC with
Canadian capital. He is currently the life time visiting Professor of
the Kunming Normal University, and formerly Assistant Professor
of Dalhousie University of Canada, Sichuan University, and Sun
Yatsen Medical University. Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive
director and Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 3 January
2007 and 26 March 2010 respectively.

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 46, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 19 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 August 2007.
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Directors’ and Senior Management's Profiles

Dr. Huang Jiaqing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 63, has over 30 years
of professional experience in the PRC's medical fields, including
clinical, preventive and emergency medicine. Dr. Huang has
served as hospital doctor, director of hospital’s emergency centre,
head of the sanitation and anti-epidemic department in hospital,
head of the hospital and medical administration bureau in the
PRC municipal government. To honour Dr. Huang’s distinguished
expertise in the medical fields, he enjoys special subsidisation from
the State Council of the PRC. Dr. Huang is currently the executive
vice president of the Group. Dr. Huang was appointed as an

executive director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan (“Mr. Chen"”), aged 46, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting in the PRC. Mr. Chen has over
15 years of accounting experience in private companies. He
had also been a project manager for more than 6 years in an
accounting firm. Mr. Chen was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 April 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James (“Dr. Wong”), aged 61, holds two
bachelor degrees in medicine and surgery from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Wong also holds a doctorate degree in medicine
from Freiburg University in Germany. He has over 30 years of
experience in medical and healthcare services in Hong Kong.
Dr. Wong was appointed as the non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne (“Ms. Wong"), aged 50, has over 25
years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Society
of Trust and Estate Practitioner and the Certified Tax Advisor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in economics
from the University of Sydney, Australia. Ms. Wong is currently the
managing director of a private company providing consulting and

management services, as well as the chief financial officer of a
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EEREREEAEHE

local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong is also
currently an independent non-executive director and a member
of the remuneration committee and the chairlady of the audit
committee of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited and Phoenitron
Holdings Limited which both companies listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 November 2007.

Prof. Hu Shanlian (“Prof. Hu"), aged 77, is a professor in
Health Economics and has a Master degree in Science from the
London School of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. At present, he
is the director of Training Centre for Health Management and
Pharmacoeconomics Research and Evaluation Centre at School
of Public Health at Fudan University in the PRC. Prof. Hu is also
the director of Health Development Research Centre in the
Shanghai Bureau of Health. Prof. Hu also held senior positions in
the National Health Economic Institution and China Network of
Training and Research in Health Economics and Financing between
1991 and 2005, which were supported by the Ministry of Health
of the PRC and World Bank respectively. Prof. Hu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
July 2009.

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (“Prof. Lu”), aged 76, is a neurologist and
has over 50 years of medical professional experience. Prof. Lu
is currently the lifetime professor of Shanghai Huashan Hospital
in the PRC and a director in the World Health Organisation’s
Neuroscience Research and Training Centre. Prof. Lu was
formerly the chairman and director of the Institute of Neurology
in Shanghai Medical University, the chairman of the Chinese
Association of Neurology and chairman of the Shanghai
association of Neurology in the Chinese Medical Society. Prof. Lu
also has an international membership with New York Academy of
Sciences. Prof. Lu was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 39, joined the Group in
December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group's chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. He has more than 10 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”)

acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the key elements in creating shareholders’ value.
The Company is also committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance that can properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability of the Company. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) (effective from 1
April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM")
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.2.1, separation
of roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code
provision A.2.1 as disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”, the Company has met all the code provisions in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2014.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a set of code for the required standard
of dealings in securities by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of directors of the Company and the directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard with
respect to the securities dealings of the Company and there was
no event of non-compliance during the period from 1 April 2013
to 31 March 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERWME

THE BOARD

The Board assumes overall responsibilities for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its business by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
focuses on overall corporate strategies and policies with attention

particularly paid to the financial performance of the Company.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances

at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

There is a clear division of the responsibilities of the Board and the
management. The Board delegated its responsibilities to directors
and senior management to deal with day-to-day operations and

review those arrangements on a periodic basis.

Management has to report back to the Board and obtain prior
approval before making decisions for key matters or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of

the business of the Company.

The Board has established three committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference which are disclosed on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange Website.

Appropriate directors’ liability insurance cover has been arranged
to indemnify the directors of the Company for liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.
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Board Composition and Attendance Records of

Directors

The Board currently composes of five executive directors, one non-
executive director and three independent non-executive directors.
During the year, seven full board meetings were held and
attendance (either in person or through other electronic means
of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the
Board together with the meetings of the audit, remuneration and

nomination committee during the year ended 31 March 2014 and

annual general meeting held in 2013 are set out below.
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HERY SHBE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2013 AGM
—ZE-Zf
Name of directors EEfs Exg EREEY FHEEe REEEE BEBFEXE
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong SESEE
(Chairman and (EERTEHER)
Chief Executive Officer) 6/7 N/A T8 B N/A T 11 11
Dr. Jiang Tao BEfEt
(Deputy Chief Executive) (fTRE#E) 717 N/A 7 N/A R A N/A R 0N
Mr. Zheng Gang WL 717 N/A R on N/A R A 1/1
Dr. Huang Jiaging EMERE 717 N/A R N/A R N/A R 0N
Mr. Chen Jin Shan BelEE 717 N/A T N/A T N/A T 11
Non-executive director FRTES
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James IHRESE 6/7 N/A 7 N/A R A N/A R 0N
Independent non- BIUFATEE
executive directors
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne BEEZut 717 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
Prof. Hu Shanlian MEBAE 717 4/4 17 17 0/1
Prof. Lu Chuanzhen BEEHR 717 4/4 11 11 0/1
EERBEEBEEBRAT
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The list of the “Directors and their Role and Function” has
been maintained at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The directors’ biographies and the relationship among
the board members, if any, are disclosed under the “Directors’ and
Senior Management'’s Profiles” on pages 18 to 20 of this annual

report.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise that each director brings to bear in its deliberations,
the Board believes that it is appropriately structured to provide
sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively oversee

the business of the Company.

Responsibilities of directors

The non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors, with diversified expertise, skills and experience, play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that
the Board maintains high standards of corporate governance.
The Board had received from each independent non-executive
director a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of independent non-executive
directors up to the date of this report is in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

On a regular basis, senior management provides the directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group’s performance,
position and prospect. All directors are kept informed of and duly
briefed of major changes and information that may affect the

Group’s business in a timely manner.
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Every Board member is entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The company secretary
continuously updates all directors on the latest development
of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate

governance practice.

Training and Continuous Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. For directors to keep abreast
of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company,
the Company had provided trainings for directors in the form
of seminar and reading materials. The Company has devised a
training record to assist the directors to record the training they
have undertaken. Also, the completed records are received from

each of the directors as confirmation.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong
currently serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides with strong and consistent leadership and allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business

decisions and strategies.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of
the Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether
any changes, including the separation of the roles of chairman

and chief executive officer.
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DIRECTORS

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific

term and subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
directors who have been longest in office since their last election
or re-election are also subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting. All retiring directors are eligible for re-

election.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person to discuss and formulate
overall strategic direction and objectives and also approve annual,
interim and quarterly results as well as other significant matters of
the Company. Execution of daily operational matters is delegated

to management.

The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing notice
and agenda for the meetings, and ensures that the Company
complied with the corporate governance practices and other
compliance matters. Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda
of each meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance. At least 14 days' notice of all regular board meetings
were given to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular discussion. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each regular board
meeting or committee meeting (or such other period as agreed) to
keep directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed

decisions.
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All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures and

all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are recorded in
significant detail for any decision and recommendation made
during the meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to directors or committee members within a reasonable
time after the meetings are held and taken as the true records
of the proceedings of such meetings. All minutes are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable

time on reasonable notice by any director.

All directors are entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on

disclosure due to regulatory requirements.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by way
of a Board/committee meeting and the interested shareholder or
director shall not vote nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum
present at the relevant meeting. Independent non-executive
director who, and whose associates, have no material interest in

the transaction, should be present at such a board meeting.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 2 November
2001, with written terms of reference compliance with rules
5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and is disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Audit Committee of the Company is
comprised of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the Audit
Committee.
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The Audit Committee met four times a year in 2013 and the main

duties of the Audit Committee during the year include:

(@) Reviewing the Group’s audited annual and unaudited interim
and quarterly results and reports and consider any significant

or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) Reviewing the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditors.

(c)  Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

(d) Advising on material even or drawing the attention of the

management on related risks.

The external auditors were invited to attend the said meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the audit
and financial reporting matters. Besides, there is no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the

reappointment of external auditors.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

On 11 February 2014, the Board resolved to establish a
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee in place
and stead of the previously Nomination Committee, which was
established on 27 March 2012 in compliance with the code
provision. Written terms of reference were disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is comprised of
three independent non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Wong Ka
Wai, Jeanne, Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong. Mr. Yung Kwok

Leong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition, including the skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and identify
individuals suitable qualified to become directors and select, or

make recommendations to the Board for directorships.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 3
June 2005 with written terms of reference as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee has four
members comprising an executive director of the Company, Mr.
Zheng Gang and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong
Ka Wai, Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the

Remuneration Committee.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include
the determination of specific remuneration package of all
executive directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, one meeting was held to
consider and approve the increase of emoluments of an executive

director.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual, interim and quarterly
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements. The directors are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory
and regulatory requirements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows of
the Group. In preparing the annual, interim and quarterly results
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 56 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year, the company secretary of the Company has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional training to

update his skills and knowledge.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group's internal
control and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls.
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs

of the Group and the risk to which it is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedure established by the Group is a day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. Key elements of internal control describe below have

been in place throughout the year under review:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and

payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for

reviewing the Group's performance; and

= clearly defined management structure and line of

responsibility.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the fees paid or payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:
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Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services RFEHEE W (T#ERT)
Audit services EZRTE 1,300
Non-audit services FBEZRTE 2,169

The non-audit services fee was related to the Group’s spin-off

project.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Company's Article of Association is also available on

the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.huaxia-healthcare.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group's financial
information and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact the share registrar of the Company, if
they have any enquires about their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
for the year.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

HEREREERE

ExEME EUMERKEAEE AR
EHRRRBREEFHRERERE  LHR
THBASEERRRARRE BADFZER
EERDAREERRRESHECREER

RN B A #3h www.huaxia-healthcare.com
EFRERRRBREEBB2TE AEEEH
WU LAHREFVBENEEMERNUHAR
Eio

B RZ BT
AATERRBEBEEN NBERE @
B3RS Wit R B F b at - DUE R IR
EAEREARD2EN - REFTUEBLS
FEBESERHEH M REMAEM
BREREZEN TUBERAAZRHE
FREE-

BRAELREZMERBERSRIBAIERL
MRABRERR REERBERERRAESE
RERBRXIR AR T Do

REALTZRAMA ESSTRERRE
BRAMRRFIAE REMVEZERA
HHEBETORADAHMERS (MBERAQF
BRRERRER) T 22— 2RI REM
RIRDERZEBAESER LA AMERLER
ER BERESSEHARRBAIRE UEHE
BRERBIAZEMEE MABASER
ESEREMEARET

BEXH
ARRAZBEXHRE AL EETRE -



The directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May

2001 under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services, pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 7.59%
of the Group's turnover and the Group's five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 23.73% of the Group’s

turnover during the financial year.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 33.90% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 11.33% of the Group's total value of purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the

Group.
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EEEHE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at 31 March
2014 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
57 to 207.

A special dividend, by way of a distribution in specie of shares
of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia Group”) upon its
separate listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the
October 2013.

“Stock Exchange”) was distributed on 10

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity respectively.

The Company had distributable reserves of approximately
HK$654.663 million as at 31 March 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$739.823 million).

Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the

Under the Companies Law (Revised)

Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association, dividends shall be
distributed out of the retained profits or other reserves, including

the share premium account, of the Company.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Zheng Gang

Dr. Huang Jiaging

Mr. Chen Jin Shan

Non-executive director:

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne
Prof. Hu Shanlian

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong and Dr. Huang lJiaging, the
executive directors of the Company and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne, the independent non-executive director of the Company,
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming general meeting.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 February
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as an executive director by way
of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 3 January 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan has been appointed as an executive director
by way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 25 April 2006 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Huang Jiaging has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

EFERHEaH
AAARTEESRESEIRPARLECH
AARETEEE B-SSTLF-A—0E
TRE-F WEREGET EEEA-F
B —FRETOR—EL 2 EEBAL L
AL -

BEBLICEARAUEZEEZRERUITE
2 A-ERLF-AZREMAN -5 %
BREREET BEE2EA-—FA3H—FEY
TOR—EREMBMKILLBERL:

BMETECBARAUEREZRERHTE
2 HIZEELEN\AB-BEHARE -5 X
BRERBEE EEEA-—FA3H—-FHY
TOR—ERZEMBAMAILEEARIL:

MeLALECRAAAUEREEZXEAHT
EE B-EERFENA-tTHBAEH A
o WERERET BEEERA—-HAARNH—F
BEAOR—EACEMBENRLEERL.

ENEBLCRBANANEAEREAYITE
B HIZEZNFLAZ=tTHERAH —F-
THREREBEET EEEA-STEEH-FH
HAPR—ERAzEMBANKEBERL-



Dr. Wong Yu Man,

non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the

James, has been appointed as the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 20 March
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen have been appointed
as independent non-executive directors by way of letters
of employment with the Company for a period of one year
commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a)

Directors’ interests and short positions in the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standards of dealings by directors of the
Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM

Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company:

ESREFRTHRAEBRFLAFTRE
B EEZRR G HRRG R R
HZiER

DT

(a)

EERFAFRAANIEAZES R
2RKE

R-ZZE-NME=A=+—H RQTES
REBTHRABEARD TR I
ZE(EEREFRBERN (TBFR
RABER |) EXVEB) 2R 10 - R A K&
EREETEBRIEES R ERAIFE352
HREBRARQARGFEZRCMAH 2 ER
k%A RRBAIER EHRAIES 462
S6TRFTMANREBETEENRE
CZREBHERDNARBRTZER R
BWT:

() FREARGEZ

Approximate

percentage

Nature Number of the total

Name of director of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT

BRipfEBZ

EEES gEang Bin&H B Bnaott
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Corporate interest (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long 10.49%
FSEZEE AEERE (M) 120,960,500 LS} 10.49%
Personal interest (Note 2) 739,248,555 Long 64.09%

BARER (KaE2) 739,248,555 #E 64.09%

Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 3,104,000 Long 0.27%
ER 47 5t 4 (PN 3,104,000 e 0.27%
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(i1)

Note 1: These shares are held through Easeglory Holdings

Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"”) with limited liability, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Marshal
International Investments Limited which is in turn
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok
Leong.

Note 2: The 739,248,555 shares represent (i) the 136,546,875

Intere

shares beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong,
and (ii) the 602,701,680 convertible preference
shares.

st in issued share capital of the Company’s

(ir)
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Mz LERDDEBSBERER

RA(REBELES ([XB
EX#E ) EMBL2BRA
A)EE SRERBRARZ
2MEBRITRABBHFBEIBRIR
BEERABER MEBEFEE
REERLALIEAFESEE
2EBRER-

MizE2 © §%739,248,555R IR0 (VB E

SEEBHEHERZ136,546,875
B AR A% 5 K (ii)602,701,6808% AT

RAR BB LZEZERITRAZ

associated corporation #E
Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings
in the
associated
corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity/ Number of issued share
Name of director corporation Nature of interest shares  Position capital
{EHEEEZ
BERTRFZ
EERf HEEERE L1 g 13 BAE®E B BRERHEIL
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Wanjia Group (Note 1) Corporate interest 24,192,100  Long 3.73%

(Note 2)
FEREE BE&E (M) DEES (MEE2) 24,192,100 #A 3.73%
Personal interest 47,009,375  Long 7.25%
BARR 47,009375 R 7.25%
Notes: L)

Hua Xia held the entire issued share capital of Greatly
Wealth Global Group Limited (“Greatly Wealth”), a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability,
which is in turn interested in 411,917,648 shares
of the Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia
Group”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability of which its shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(representing approximately 63.53% of the issued share
capital of Wanjia Group). Therefore, Wanjia Group
is an associated corporation of the Company for the
purposes of the SFO.

These shares are held through Easeglory, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Marshal
which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yung Kwok Leong.

EERANRRBELHE (X8
BEX#BE EMRIZ2ERLA
ARBRIREBERAT ([KE])
ZEIEBITHRA  MARRRE
EAERATINA11,917,643RE=
EEERAT ((ERER]) RH
(HEREZEECBHITRAZY
63.53% ) PIEEREZ - AUtk BF
(RHERGMS BEEEAXR
AT ZEHEEE -

ZEROTVEBZBER MEE
ZEBEBITRABBHES B
FHRMESERTELEERE
Ao
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(iff)  Interests in share options under Post-IPO share option

scheme:
Name of director Exercise period
EEgR TiERA

(i) BRAFERERBKRETEET Z
BREEZ -

Number of
Exercise share options
price granted Position
=% 1.4
TR BRRENE =

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
BERLE “EENFAAZTAE
—E-NE=ZA=+NH

Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
BEEL —EEAFABR=THE

—E-AF=H=thAH
23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015

—E-ZEF=ZA=-+=HZE
—E-RF=ZA=+=H
Mr. Zheng Gang 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
R E 5 4 —E-EF=A-+=HZE
—E-HE=A=+=H
Dr. Huang Jiaging 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
EMEBLE —E-ZTF=HA=-+=HE
—E-HEF=HAZ+ZH
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
FR& L. —E-EF=A=-+=HZE

—E-HFE=HF=+=H

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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(b)

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b)
in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests of a director

or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, the interests

and short positions of persons in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

FERFRBOREMAKRHZEER %
-

RZE-NFE=ZA=+—-H KBRLEX[E
ERFETBRAERERG HEBERORE
BEZEZ | —FMEEANRESERE
ETHABZEEN UTALTRAEALR
ROREEARDFEERBEZSRAE
RBIE36RBRERARFE ZETMA
BoEZRER:

Long positions in shares of the Company: EAFIERIRZEHE:
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
EERTRA
wayz
BEREB B8 E g 51 BHast
Marshal International 120,960,500 Long Beneficial owner 10.49%

Investments Limited (Note 1)

BEHEIRKREBR AT (M) 120,960,500 #AE BEREEA 10.49%
Easeglory Holdings Limited (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long Beneficial owner 10.49%
ZRERBRLRE (M) 120,960,500 #a BEREEA 10.49%
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying (Note 1) 861,909,055 Long Interest of spouse 74.72%
SARHELZ L (HEE) 861,909,055 e [ty 74.72%
Mr. Zhan Guo Tuan (Note 2) 60,000,000 Long Beneficial owner 5.20%
EEELE (HaE2) 60,000,000 HE BERBEEA 5.20%
EEBREEEERAF
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of the total

Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares

HE BTG

Bz

BREB Bin&E B 5% #;iaask

Ms. Lin Zhen Jin (Note 2) 60,000,000 Long Interest of spouse 5.20%

mB &t (KEE2) 60,000,000 #Ra Fe B = 5.20%

Rubyland Investments Limited 60,000,000 Long Beneficial owner 5.20%
(Note 3)

Rubyland Investments Limited 60,000,000 waE EmEBA 5.20%
(FFEE3)

Mr. Lau Kim Hung, Jack (Note 4) 64,016,000 Long Beneficial owner 5.55%

2o %k (HEE4) 64,016,000 e BEREEA 5.55%

Ms. Chan Yiu Kan, Katie (Note 4) 64,016,000 Long Interest of spouse 5.55%

BRIRE &+ (KizE4d) 64,016,000 #e F @R = 5.55%

Notes: P&

(1

The issued share capital of Easeglory Holdings Limited
is 100% beneficially owned by Marshal International
Investments Limited which is in turn beneficially owned by Mr.
Yung Kwok Leong, an executive director and the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. By
virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Mrs.
Yung Muk Ying is deemed to be interested in 120,960,500
shares held by Easeglory Holdings Limited and 136,546,875
shares and 1,700,000 share options and 602,701,680
convertible preference shares beneficially held by Mr. Yung
Kwok Leong in personal capacity.

Mr. Zhan Guo Tuan is interested in 60,000,000 shares of the
Company. Ms. Lin Zhen Jin is deemed to be interested in
60,000,000 shares by virtue of her being the spouse of Mr.
Zhan Guo Tuan.

The issued share capital of Rubyland Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability, is 100%
beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Kim Hung, Jack.
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(4) The 66,900,000 shares represents (i) 60,000,000 shares
are held through Rubyland Investments Limited, which
is beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Kim Hung, Jack and (ii)
4,016,000 shares are held through by Bountiful Resources
limited, a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability
which the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr.

Lau Kim Hung, Jack.

By virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Lau Kim Hung,
Jack, Ms. Chan Yiu Kan, Katie is deemed to be interested in
60,000,000 shares held by Rubyland Investments Limited and
4,016,000 shares held by Bountiful Resources Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time since incorporation of the Company were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 March 2014, there were 32,801,287 outstanding share
options, of which, were granted pursuant to the Post-IPO share
option scheme adopted on 20 April 2002. A breakdown setting
out the number of outstanding share options, their respective
exercise price and respective exercise period under the Post-IPO

scheme was as follows:

S B 4 T &Y
RZE-WmNE=ZA=+—-HB X2TH
32,801,287M HARITHEBRE  HNDREBER =
ZE_FHNA-THRAZERLDHERERE
BRESERE - BAAHABERFTEBTHEAX
THEBREHE HEBAZTHRERTESS
M

Number of

share options

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price outstanding
HERITEZ
wBBAER TR TR MRENE
Directors
E=
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 1,700,000
FEZTE —ERNFEAA=THE 0.50/ 7T 1,700,000
—E-hEZ=ZA=+HhA
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 800,000
EeEt “ERNFAA=THE 0.50/8 7T 800,000
—E-hF=A=+hH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 1,563,380
—E-FEF=ZF=+=HZE 1,128 7T 1,563,380
—E-HFE=ZHA=+=H
Mr. Zheng Gang 23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 2,814,084
1E: s —E-ZEF=ZA=-t+=HE 11258 7T 2,814,084

—E-RHE=HA=-+=H
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Categories of grantees

Exercise period
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Exercise price

Number of
share options

outstanding

MERTEZ
EBAER TEHY TEE WEREHA
Directors
BT
Dr. Huang Jiaging 23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 312,676
EMESEE —E-ZEF=ZA=-+=HZE 1.127%8 7T 312,676
—E-RF=A=+=H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 2,084,507
FR& L EE —E-ZEF=A=-+=HZ 1.12%& 7T 2,084,507
—E-F&=A=+=AH
Employees and consultants of 13 July 2006 to 12 July 2016 HK$3.61 459,739
the Group
*EEEEREM —EEXFtLtA+=HE 3.61%8T 459,739
—E-X"FtA+ZH
21 March 2007 to 20 March 2017 HK$2.94 1,042,253
—EELF=ZA=-t+—RHE 2.94% T 1,042,253
—E—+H=HA=+H
30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 450,000
—EERFAA=THE 0.5078 7T 450,000
—E-NAFE=ZBZ=+HhH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 21,574,648
—E-EF=AZ+=RHZFE 1.12%& 7T 21,574,648
—E-RAEFE=H=+=H
Total #5t 32,801,287
EEBREEEERAF
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on
page 208. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Certain connected transactions which are significant are also
disclosed as related party transactions (see Note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, the following
transactions are “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” as defined in the GEM Listing Rules and

are required to be disclosed in the annual report of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Issue of non-redeemable convertible preference
shares

With reference to the announcement dated 10 October
2013 and the circular of the Company dated 19 August
2013, on 10 April 2013, the Company entered into
the Convertible Preference Share (“CPS"”) Subscription
Agreement with Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”),
pursuant to which Mr. Yung has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
the Second Batch CPS at the total Issue Price of HK$120
million which will be satisfied by setting off against HK$120

million principal amount of the Promissory Note.

Mr. Yung, a director and one of the substantial shareholder
of the Company, and is thus a connected person on the part

of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

All the conditions precedent of the CPS Subscription being
fulfilled, the CPS Subscription was completed on 10 October
2013. In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CPS Subscription Agreement, a total of 504,201,680 Second
Batch CPSs were allotted and issued to Mr. Yung at the
total Issue Price of HK$120 million which was satisfied by
setting off against HK$120 million principal amount of the

Promissory Note.
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B. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

()

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“FHP
Chain”)

Tenancy Agreement 1

Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd (“"Fuzhou Huihao"”), an indirectly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into two tenancy
agreements on 28 December 2009 for a term of five
years with an aggregate rental fee of RMB146,634 per
quarter from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2014
with FHP Chain for Property 1 and the Property 2
which are for used as office and warehouse of Fuzhou
Huihao. As disclosed in the announcement of Hua Xia
dated 10 September 2012, new tenancy agreement
is entered into and terminated all the above previous
tenancy agreements between Fuzhou Huihao and FHP
Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Fujian Hihao and FHP
Chain entered a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement 1) for the rental of (i) Level 1 and Level
4 of the office building located at No. 8 Huihao Road,
Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the “Property 1”) with a gross floor area (“GFA")
approximately 1,336 square meter (“sg.m.”); and
(ii) Levels 1 to 3 of the warehouse building located
at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian, the PRC (the “Property 2") with a GFA of
approximately 9,957 sg.m.. The term of the lease
is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015 with
a rental of RMB10,688 per month for the Property
1 and RMB49,785 per month for the Property 2
and is renewable upon the signing of a new rental

agreement.
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Tenancy Agreement 2

Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company
Limited (“Huihao Sihai”) an indirectly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement on 28 December 2009 for a terms of five
years with an aggregate rental fee of RMB64,188 per
quarter from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2014
with FHP Chain for Property 3 and Property 4 form
part, which is used as office and warehouse of Huihao
Sihai. As disclosed in the announcement of Hua Xia
dated 10 September 2012, new tenancy agreement
is entered into and terminated all the above previous
tenancy agreements between Huihao Sihai and FHP
Chain.

On 10 September 2012, Huihao Sihai and FHP
Chain entered a new tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement 2"”) for the rental of (i) Level 3 of the
office building located at No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie
Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC (the
“Property 3"”) with a GFA of approximately 600 sq.m.;
and (ii) Level 4 of the warehouse building located
on No.8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 4") with a
GFA of approximately 3,319 sq.m.. The term of the
lease is from 10 September 2012 to 31 March 2015
with a rental of RMB4,800 per month for the Property
3 and RMB16,595 per month for the Property 4 and
is renewable upon the signing of the new rental

agreement.

FHP Chain Company was held as to 50% of its issued
share capital by Mr. Weng lJiale, a nephew of Mr. Yung,
a substantial shareholder and an executive director of
the Company. Therefore, FHP Chain is an associate of
Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) of the
Listing Rules.
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(i)

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction
amount with FHP Chain contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement 1 is RMB725,676 (equivalent to
approximately HK$914,300) and Tenancy Agreement
2 is RMB256,740 (equivalent to approximately
HK$323,500) for the year ending 31 March 2014.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
paid rental charge of RMB725,676 (equivalent to
approximately HK$914,300) in respect of the Tenancy
Agreement 1 and RMB256,740 (equivalent to
approximately HK$323,500) in respect of the Tenancy

Agreement 2.

Purchase agreement with a connected person
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Huihao Hong Kong"),
an indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a purchase agreement on 26 April 2012
for a term of three years ending 31 March 2015
with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("FHP Company”). Upon reviewing the latest trading
pattern and the actual purchase amount of the
pharmaceutical products, Huihao Hong Kong and FHP
Company entered into a new purchase agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement”) on 19 September
2013 which superseded the remaining term of the
previous purchase agreement. Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group have agreed to
purchase certain pharmaceutical products from FHP
Company for a term of two years ending 31 March
2015.

FHP Company was held as to 55% of its issued share
capital by Mr. Weng lJiale, who is a nephew of Mr.
Yung, a substantial shareholder and an executive
director of the Company. Therefore, FHP company is an
associate of Mr. Weng and Mr. Yung, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(iii)

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction
amount with FHP Company contemplated under the
agreement is HK$1.93 million for the year ending
31 March 2014. During the year ended 31 March
2014, the Group total actual purchase transaction
amount approximately HK$1,858 million (equivalent to

approximately RMB1,475 million).

Sales agreements with connected persons

Huihao Hong Kong entered into a sales agreement
on 26 April 2012 for a term of three years ending
31 March 2015 with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“FHP Company”). Upon reviewing
the latest trading pattern and the actual purchase
amount of the pharmaceutical products, Huihao Hong
Kong and FHP Company entered into a new sales
agreement (the “FHP Sales Agreement”) on 19
September 2013 which superseded the remaining term
of the previous sales agreement. Pursuant to the FHP
Sales Agreement, Huihao Hong Kong Group has agreed
to sell and deliver certain pharmaceutical products from
FHP Company for a term of two years ending 31 March
2015.

The annual cap for the Group’s total transaction
amount with FHP Company contemplated under the
agreement is HK$2.32 million for the year ending
31 March 2014. During the year ended 31 March
2014, the Group total actual sales transaction amount
approximately HK$1.686 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.338 million).
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The independent non-executive directors of the
Company, Pro. Hu Shanlian, Pro. Lu Chuanzhen and
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne have, for the purpose
of Rule 20.37 of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions, for the reporting period, have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions and on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issue
their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,
qualifications and competence of employees.
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The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 15 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2014, save for the
exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this

report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in hands of the

public exceeds 25% of the total number of issued shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are

set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statement.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2014 were audited by HLB Hodgson Imply Cheng Limited
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and

being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Yung Kwok Leong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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B a3t @ F AR A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to
207, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANICIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: P05806

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BEMBRRE

At 31 March 2014 RA=ZE—NFE=A=+—H

2014 2013
—ZT—mE —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff&E THET FE T
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 36,374 36,421
Prepaid lease payments FE{NHEEMRE 31,365 32,036
Investment properties BREWHE 9 8,306 8,157
Goodwill [EES 10 788,420 788,420
864,465 865,034
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 13 133,939 124,038
Trade and other receivables and ESRHEMERFERZES
deposits 14 528,144 505,807
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEBEBRIEZ
profit or loss B EE 15 1,259 =
Derivative financial instruments THEEMIT A 16 384 69
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITER 17 17,431 3,609
Cash and bank balances BERIBITHEER 17 92,418 79,980
773,575 713,503
Total assets EEME 1,638,040 1,578,537
EQUITY #E
Capital and reserves BER R
Share capital B 18 17,562 11,824
Reserves 18 706,691 933,241
Equity attributable to owners of EoEHAEARMGRES
the Company 724,253 945,065
Non-controlling interests JEPERIER 426,170 40,974
Total equity HaHHE 1,150,423 986,039
EEBREEEERAF

2013/2014 FE 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEaMBRRAE

At 31 March 2014 R=ZE—NFE=F=+—H

2014 2013
—Z—M@mF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff&E FEx FHET
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities mBAR
Trade and other payables B REMENTIE 20 310,259 331,669
Bank borrowings RITEE 21 88,088 50,672
Amounts due to non-controlling AT IEZER R 2
shareholders 22 1,213 1,053
Tax payables FE A~ i 18 11,258 11,352
410,818 394,746
Non-current liabilities EREBIAR
Convertible note iR RE 23 5,012 4,627
Promissory note AHEE 24 71,361 192,635
Deferred taxation ERER 8 25 426 490
76,799 197,752
Total liabilities AEfFHREE 487,617 592,498
Total equity and liabilities BaRARBREEH 1,638,040 1,578,537
Net current assets mENEERE 362,757 318,757
Total assets less current liabilities BEMNERTHAR 1,227,222 1,183,791

The consolidated financial statements were approved and FREMBERER—_ZE—HWNFEAA-+HAH
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 EESHERTRETIE YHTIESRARE

and signed on its behalf by: Z:
Yung Kwok Leong Jiang Tao EE
Director Director BER

EFE
ELyE s

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these MM EAZEREMBERRZ 2D

consolidated financial statements.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position
BB AR &

At 31 March 2014 RA=ZE—NFE=A=+—H

2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff&E THET FHET
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets FERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG F 12 975,503 108,692
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables and deposits HihEWRERIZE 14 355 354
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA 16 384 69
Cash and bank balances HERBITEER 16,490 8,476
Amounts due from subsidiaries AL NGBS 12 63,123 878,391
80,352 887,290
Total assets EEHE 1,055,855 995,982
EQUITY ga
Capital and reserves BER R
Share capital % A% 18 17,562 11,824
Reserves R 19 674,297 759,958
Equity attributable to owners of EAFIHBAEGES
the Company 691,859 771,782
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities mENAR
Accruals and other payables FEET & A & H B R IE 20 2,940 1,452
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS K B A B TR I8 12 284,257 24,996
287,197 26,448
EEERBEEEEBRAT

2013/2014 FE 3R
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Statement of Financial Position
BB AR &

At 31 March 2014 R=ZE—NFE=F=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff=E FERT FHET

Non-current liabilities ERDARE
Convertible note AR EE 23 5,012 4,627
Promissory note 7 24 71,361 192,635
Deferred taxation IE FE 5 18 25 426 490
76,799 197,752
Total liabilities EfFHEE 363,996 224,200
Total equity and liabilities BeERaREHA 1,055,855 995,982
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE(RER) HESE (206,845) 860,842
Total assets less current liabilities SEHERTDHAR 768,658 969,534

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MEBRA—E—NFEFRAA-+THEEHESS
by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 and signed on its HERTRETZ THTIEERREE:
behalf by:

Yung Kwok Leong Jiang Tao EE EE
Director Director AER BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BEMIMIE RSB RRk 2 —3 D

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Hit 2R #m %

GEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ ==

—mOF=A=t—HILEFE

2014 2013
—E—pEF S=2
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it 5 FTHT FERT
Turnover & %] 27 2,243,159 2,020,589
Cost of sales HERE (1,974,156) (1,781,727)
Gross profit EFH 269,003 238,862
Other revenue Hitb e = 27 10,258 10,376
Other income Hbuwg A 28 1,360 1,153
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (94,873) (79,677)
Administrative expenses THRAX (92,316) (86,354)
Loss on early redemption of REBRANZERE 2EE
promissory note (16,269) (1,389)
Profit from operations BEEBEAEN 28 77,163 82,971
Finance costs B 75 & A 31 (10,493) (10,288)
Profit before taxation BRIRATE T 66,670 72,683
Taxation I8 32 (29,216) (22,141)
Profit for the year EEERT 37,454 50,542
Other comprehensive income TEEHMZEKA
for the year, net of tax: HBRRARE:
ltems that may be reclassified HEAEFsBEER 2B
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BEBIKEER CETERE
foreign operations 7,284 2,441
Total comprehensive income XEERZEBAHEE
for the year 44,738 52,983
ZEBREBEERA A

2013/2014 FE 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEEkEMEEMREE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—ZE—NFE=A=+—HIEFE

2014 2013
—ZE—MmE = e
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i 5 FTET FERT
Profit for the year attributable to: FE{EEEERF:
Owners of the Company ERNFHEEBA 21,913 42,740
Non-controlling interests FEERER 15,541 7,802
37,454 50,542
Total comprehensive income BEFFEZEMBAEE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company EAFEBA 28,398 44,898
Non-controlling interests FERER 16,340 8,085
44,738 52,983
Earnings per share attributable to #HATFHEAEGESERET
owners of the Company
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EHAKR (FREA) 34 1.52 3.61
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 858 (B 34 1.52 3.56

any

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BT AZEFREMBERRZ—BD-

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEDmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B ZE - —NF=A=+—HIELFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FLTRA AR
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital Other Special  Translation payment  Convertible Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  note reserve reserve profits Sub-Total interests equity
HRhE
114 HR
k% RiER f23 ] Eid 1 ] R ERER REd ] RERRE HERRE REEN Mt FERES £1] ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T T T T T T T Thn Thn T T T
(Note (c)) (Note (g)) (Note (a)) (Note (d)) (Note (e)) (Note (f) (Note (b))
(W) (Kl (W&E(a)) (W) (Wle) (&) (W)
At1 April 2012 W-E-ZEMB-A 11,824 190,250 579,395 = (6,735 2,146 14,862 2,537 17,465 65,139 898,883 41,161 940,044
Other comprehensive income REREMZARA
for the year, net of tax NBRA:
Exchange difference on translating BERNEHL
foreign operations EXZH - - - - - 2158 - - - - 2,158 283 244
Proft or the year KEERA - - - - - - - - - 42,740 4,740 7802 50,542
Total comprehensive income REERANALE
for the year - - - - - 2158 - - - 42,740 44898 8,085 52,983
Issue of share options ROTBRE - - - - - - 1284 - - - 1,284 - 1,284
Transfer to statutory reserves ERTITEE - - - - - B - - 7,989 (7.989) = = =
Dividend paid to non-controling KN THERERZ
interests RE - - - - - - - - - - - 8.272) (8.272)
At30 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R=B-Z&
ZRZ1-BR
Z3-ZERA-R 11,824 190,250 579,395 - (6,735 26,304 16,146 2531 25454 99,890 945,065 40974 986,039
Other comprehensive income REEEBRANA
for the year, net of tax MBHE:
Exchange difference on translating REENER
foreign operations ERZE - - - - - 6,485 - - - - 6,485 799 7,284
Proft or the year REEREA - - - - - - - - - 21913 21913 15,541 37454
Total comprehensive income REERANALE
for the year - - - - - 6,485 - - - 2913 28398 16,340 4738
Issue of non-redeemable convertible ~ F R TEETERELR
preference shares 5,042 114,958 - - - - - - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Exercise of share options TERRE 696 11,761 - - - - (427) - - - 12,030 = 12,030
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - - - (14) - - 74 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZEERR - - - - - - - - 11,625 (11,625) - - -
Dividend paid to non-controling R FHERERZ
interests RE - = = = = B - - - - = (4731 (4131
Dividend by way of a distrbution NENHE A RS
in specie - - (283,785) (89,802) = = = = = = (373,587) 373,587 -
Professional expenses incurred RETHBLIZHRAEL
in connection with issuance of LEERX
new shares of a subsidiary - - - (7,653) - - - - - - (7,653) - (7,653)
At 31 March 2014 R-B-MEZA=1-R 17,562 316,969 295,610 (97,455) (6,735 32,789 15,645 2,531 37,019 110,252 724253 426,170 1,150,423
EZEEREEBRA A

2013/2014 FE 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE—ZE—NFE=A=+—HIEFE

Notes:

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$2,935,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired

pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

The decrease in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$41,580,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2007.

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$31,910,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2008.

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve balance
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors and
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The increase in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$579,395,000 of the Group as the result of capital reduction
taken by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The decrease in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$283,785,000 during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented
special interim dividend paid in specie in connection with the
separate listing of shares of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia
Group”), a subsidiary of the Company, on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
11 October 2013 (Note 35).

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in Note 4.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEDmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B ZE - —NFE=A=+—HILLFE

The share-base payment reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange the grant of the relevant
options over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The amount is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding

increase in the share-based payment reserve.

The share-base payment reserve which is expired would be released
directly to retained profits.

The convertible note reserve represents the equity components of
the convertible note issued. Convertible note issued are split into
their liability and equity components at initial recognition at the fair
values of the convertible note, which is determined by independent
qualified professional valuers.

The decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$89,802,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014 represented the
difference between the amount of special interim dividend paid
in specie and the non-controlling interests’ share of net assets of
Wanjia Group pursuant to the separate listing of shares of Wanijia
Group.

The decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$7,653,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented the capitalised
listing expenses arised from the separate listing of shares of Wanjia
Group.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

(e)

R BER 2 S HHEERBRINEREE
HA ) P9 3K A A B AR R T ik BT S T B2 AR
BN FE HAHUBRENMIHAH 2
ATEAFEELE - ZEHEARBETIRAEAR
HHBE R 32 - I AR R 0 DA IR 40 5 B 2 A TR Ak
e

DG RER 2 SREEERESEERNRE
REBEF]

ARREBREECSBITIRREE 2BEM
7 BRTHRREERDSEIRRATERR
REAFEIRHEERERNND AAFE
HBYAERBEGEMERE

REBZE-Z-—NE+-_A=+—HILFERZ
HAu R4 289,802,000 TIERIEE =&
ERHE L Lz AEY S RS 2455+ 5
RESCEEFEREZSMEERZEEZEES
BZEE-

BE-E—_NE=A=+—AHALFER Hitz
B D #7,653,0008 tiEEZEB 2 KRB
BY LHIEEZEER L EHmBEX-

BHMERZEFEMBRR 2 —8MD
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B ZE—ZE—NFE=A=+—HIEFE

2014 2013
—Z—QmE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXBZHERE
Profit before taxation R Fi B F 66,670 72,683
Adjustments for: FEIFE
Interest income FE WA (3,315) (3,040)
Interest expenses FERAX 10,493 10,288
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments S ERRIE 1,257 1,224
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERZEBINE 10,551 10,545
Change in fair value of investment properties REVERATFEER - (492)
Change in fair value of TESMIENTEZS
derivative financial instruments (315) 92
Loss on early redemption of promissory note REBRALZEEZEE 16,269 1,389
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERSZHEZ ()
equipment BB (299) 276
Realised gain on financial assets at fair value BRAFEEREBRZIRZTEE
through profit or loss EzE#B s (117) =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade MESZREMERRERRZ
and other receivables WAEE B 1,863 989
Reversal of impairment loss recognised MEZREMEBERRIEER 2
in respect of trade and other receivables VEREYE =k (746) (551)
Share-based payment expenses DURHAERZAREX - 1,284
Operating cash inflows before movements in EEESRBDARKERESRA
working capital 102,311 94,687
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,652) (13,485)
Increase in trade and other receivables and B REMEKRRIERIZRESIZM
deposits (14,308) (126,650)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables E 5 & H b fE{tFE
Om4) /18 (27,389) 29,219
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling e 3R IR IR 3R 2 SR IB R 2>
shareholders 151 1,841
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations XM E,/ (FA)BEEFEE 53,113 (14,388)
Withholding tax (paid)/refund (Bf) BRENH (2,383) 612
Overseas tax paid BN IE (27,198) (20,423)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KReEEKRE (AR FHE
operating activities 23,532 (34,199)

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
g’; | Eﬁ, ﬁ JIL E %‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B ZE—ZE—NE=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—Z—mE —2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREETHZHERE
Interest received 2 WF 2 3,315 3,040
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ﬂ%,ﬁﬂ)% BB KR E ‘ (10,153) (9,242)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATFEEREREKRZ
through profit or loss MgEE (60,475) =
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEMNHERE ) - (60)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE BRERZEZ
plant and equipment P18 TR IE 609 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFEEBERIIKRZ
at fair value through profit or loss M ERE ZFBNRIE 59,332 =
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity HEREZIHRE
investments FriS I8 - 123
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMARESFRE (7.372) (6,139)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®MEZFHZRERE
Interest paid 2R E (7.651) (6,432)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits EIEFRITER (i"le])//Jii’J‘ (13,772) 19,238
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [EERE =2 H”*Eﬁﬁﬂ (4,731) (7,770)
Redemption of promissory notes E\E@EKR?—:#{; (20,000) (10,000)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR ERTS IR 12,030 =
Professional expenses incurred in connection B2 5% 47 — RO B 2 7 27 I8 45
with the issuance of new shares of EEzExEH
a subsidiary (7,653) -
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 1T %?ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁ( 88,193 53,138
Repayment of bank borrowings 1;Efﬁdﬂa E (51,656) (39,048)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTA) FiBREFHE
financing activities (5,240) 9,126
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and NerRB&FERE
cash equivalents | (D) 10,920 (31,212)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning E#MZRERRE&FEIEH
of the year 79,980 109,212
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes JMEEE R& g~ S & 1,518 1,980
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRZBSRBSFERA
the year 92,418 79,980
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBeSEEHRZRIIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances ReRIBITEE 92,418 79,980
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these M IS ZSEGREaMBHRRZ—3D
consolidated financial statements.
ZEBREBEERA A

2013/2014 FE 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ml

CLEE:E LR

31 March 2014 =& —MFE=H=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
May 2001 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. The registered office
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The head office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is located at 19/F., New Wing,
101 King's Road, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
most of its subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"). The directors
of the Company considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the
shares of the Company are listed on the GEM board of the
Stock Exchange. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of HK$ (HK$'000), unless

otherwise stated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the
PRC. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REORGANISATION

In the preparation for the listing of shares of Wanjia Group

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 October

2013, the Group underwent a corporate reorganisation (the

“Reorganisation”) and as a result of which Wanjia Group

became the holding company of certain subsidiaries of

the Company. The Reorganisation included the following

principal steps:

(a)

incorporation of Luxuriant Expand Global Investments
Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”) on 10 April 2012 and
allotment and issue of 100 ordinary shares of Luxuriant

Expand to the Company at par on 4 July 2012;

incorporation of the Wanjia Group on 9 July 2012 in
the Cayman Islands and transfer of the Incorporation
Share from Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
to Greatly Wealth Global Group Limited (“Greatly

Wealth”) at nil consideration;

acquisition of 1 ordinary share, representing the
entire issued share capital in Timely Hero Enterprises
Limited (“Timely Hero"), by Luxuriant Expand from the
Company on 3 September 2013 in consideration of
the allotment and issue of 200 shares of US$1 each in
Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to the

Company;

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

Ed
REREEREEZRONR-Z-—=F1+
At —BRBXERLED  REBET
TXEA (B4l MEASEREH
BMAAARETHEBARZERRF B
HERERUTEESR:

R-BE——_FWA+HFEMAILE
MRRBEFRAR ([EM]) &
R-ZE-——_FtAMNHAZREEBEDR
NE BB R BT EIMBI100/ &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ml

31 March 2014 =&

CLEE:E LR

—mF=RA=+—H

2. REORGANISATION - continued

(d) capitalisation of the outstanding amount of
approximately HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero
to the Company on 3 September 2013 in consideration
of (i) the allotment and issue of 1 share of US$1 in
the share capital of Timely Hero to Luxuriant Expand,
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of the
Company; and (ii) the allotment and issue of a total
of 100 shares of US$1 each in the share capital of
Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to the
Company in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in

Timely Hero at the direction of the Company; and

(e) acquisition of 300 shares in Luxuriant Expand,
representing its entire issued share capital by the
Wanjia Group from the Company on 3 September
2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment and issue of
648,405,299 shares, all credited as fully paid up, to
Greatly Wealth at the direction of the Company and
the crediting as fully paid at par of the Incorporation
Share registered in the name of Greatly Wealth; and (ii)
the allotment and issue of 100 shares of US$1 each in
the share capital of Greatly Wealth, all credited as fully
paid up, to the Company in consideration of its receipt
of 648,405,299 shares from the Wanjia Group at the

direction of the Company.

Upon the completion of the Reorganisation, Wanjia Group
became the holding company of Luxuriant Expand, Timely
Hero, Nurture Fit Limited (“Nurture Fit”), Hui Hao (HK)
Group Limited (“Hui Hao (HK)”), Fujian Huihao Sihai
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“Huihao Sihai”),
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co.
Ltd (“Fuzhou Huihao”), Putian Huihao Medicine Co. Ltd
(“Putian Huihao”), Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Ltd (“Fujian
Huiming”) and Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co. Ltd.
("Quanzhou Huihao"”). The Reorganisation became effective
on 3 September 2013.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMSE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied all of the

following new and revised standards, amendments and

interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the

“HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations and effective

for the Group's financial year beginning on or after 1
April 2013, and the amendments to HKAS 36 which are

mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2014.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

Government Loans

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint

Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits

ERHMIREESITERME
BEEN([FRMEREE

All)

RAFE  AEBCERAMBUTHE SR
S AE ([BEEHMLAE]) Bz
HEXBAERR-"Z—=F0HA—H
B 2 AR B8 R F EE M2 K&
ERT R MER] K21 ([ 73] RAAERT

ERUYHREER

1) RR=ZZ2—WF

—B-HRzERR S HEREE
Mz BBETERE36H (BFTA) -

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Recoverable Amount and Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

BB R EEA BRER
E15% (BEIK)

BB R EEA RE-HENBEER
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5105
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

The Group has early applied HKAS 36 (Amendments)
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

The impact on application of these new and revised HKFRSs

is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose

information about:

(a) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial

instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

As the Group does not have any offsetting arrangements
or any master netting agreements in place, the application
of the amendments has had no material impact on
the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11
Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate
Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group

as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out

below.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met
for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included in
HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over an
investee. Some guidance included in HKFRS 10 that deals
with whether or not an investor that owns less than 50% of
the voting rights in an investee has control over the investee

is relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers, has been incorporated in
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how
a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted for. Under
HKFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements
— joint operations and joint ventures. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is determined
based on the rights and obligations of parties to the
joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal
form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed
by the parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant,
other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated three
types of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets.
The classification of joint arrangements under HKAS 31
was primarily determined based on the legal form of the
arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was established
through a separate entity was accounted for as a jointly

controlled entity).
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued
Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 — continued

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and
its expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the

applicable standards.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

ERHITIRESITEEMBE
HEQ ([FEMBREEN])
— iR

FRGESEE ARARH -HELT
REEZHOTREEITEN &

EREEMERSENEI1RZIBE
-8
BENREGEER NI RHERES
BREEMAR -REERRZREERE
BEAR(KPGFEEETABER) - R
BEXBZREZARTEREHRBELE
EENRIAELEE (BEHEEEAHAERF
FEERGZNER) HAEE (BEEY
FRNLEEERERGEZOE) - Hila
(BREAHHESEEBELMELE 2R
HmEG 2R RERX (BREAHEM
HEELERXELZHRE) - SHELEE
ERBEREAGRERSEXB D 2
BREEREGURKBERFAI AR

EREEMEREENE12ZRZVE

EBMBHMEEREI125RD BB
BEQ YBEAREMBAR HEZR
BOBMERAR/RARARGEEBILER

FHEERECER -BEmMS  EASB
BB EERNFIEERNGRETHRE
ZWEFEREZ -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad;
the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13
apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for
the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for

impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement — continued

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1
January 2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions
were given to entities such that they need not apply
the disclosure requirements set out in the standard in
comparative information provided for periods before the
initial application of the standard. In accordance with these
transitional provisions, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013 comparative
period. Other than the additional disclosures, the application
of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011
Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:
o amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements;

o amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment; and

o amendments to HKAS 32 Ffinancial Instruments:

Presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011

Cycle issued in June 2012 - continued

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information
in the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement of

financial position.

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and

as inventory otherwise.

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be

accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. The
amendments introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, the “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” and the “income statement”
is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of
other comprehensive income has been modified to reflect
the changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS
1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other

comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosure for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 are to remove certain
unintended disclosure requirements which may be
introduced by the consequential amendments to HKAS 36
when HKFRS 13 was issued. Furthermore, these amendments
require the disclosure of additional information about the
fair value measurement when the recoverable amount of

impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

Except for the above, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs had no material impact on the Group's
consolidated financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustments had been required.

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Hedge Accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39¢

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

(Amendments)

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

Transition Disclosures*
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued
Amendments to HKAS 36: Recoverable Amount

Disclosure for Non-Financial Assets — continued
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities’
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
012 Cycle?
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011
013 Cycle?
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation?
HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefits Plans: Employee
Contributions?
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and Continuation

of Hedge Accounting'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

L effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with earlier application permitted

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

4 no mandatory effective date yet determined but is available
for adoption

g effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or

loss.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a significant impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities (e.g. the Group's available-for-sale
investments may have to be measured at fair value at the
end of subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the
fair value being recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the
Group's financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a

reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has

been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the
related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of

set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement

or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with

retrospective application required.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the
related disclosures - continued

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities in the future.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011) Investment Entities

The investment entities amendments apply to a particular
class of business that qualify as investment entities. The
term ‘investment entity’ refers to an entity whose business
purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income or both. An investment
entity must also evaluate the performance of its investments
on a fair value basis. Such entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension

funds, sovereign wealth funds and other investment funds.

Under HKFRS 10, reporting entities were required
to consolidate all investees that they control (i.e. all
subsidiaries). Preparers and users of financial statements
have suggested that consolidating the subsidiaries of
investment entities does not result in useful information
for investors. Rather, reporting all investments, including
investments in subsidiaries, at fair value, provides the most

useful and relevant information.

In response to this, the amendments provide an exception
to the consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 and require
investment entities to measure particular subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them.
The amendments also set out disclosure requirements for

investment entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

(2011) Investment Entities — continued

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2014 with
early adoption permitted in order to allow investment
entities to apply the amendments at the same time they first
apply the rest of HKFRS 10.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27 (2011)
will have no material impact on the Group's financial

performance and positions.

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives

and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The narrow-scope amendments will allow hedge accounting
to continue in a situation where a derivative, which has been
designated as a hedging instrument, is novated to effect
clearing with a central counterparty as a result of laws or
regulation, if specific conditions are met (in this context, a
novation indicates that parties to a contract agree to replace

their original counterparty with a new one).

This relief has been introduced in response to legislative
changes across many jurisdictions that would lead to the
widespread novation of over-the-counter derivatives. These
legislative changes were prompted by a G20 commitment to
improve transparency and regulatory oversight of over-the-
counter derivatives in an internationally consistent and non-

discriminatory way.

Similar relief will be included in HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

- continued

The amendments will be effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and applied

retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The directors anticipate that the application of these

amendments to HKAS 39 will have no material impact on

the Group's financial performance and positions.
HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) —
addresses how an entity should account for liabilities to pay

Int 21 is an interpretation of HKAS 37 and

levies imposed by governments, other than income taxes, in
its financial statements. The principal question raised was
about when the entity should recognise a liability to pay a
levy. It clarifies that the obligating event that gives rise to a
liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the relevant
legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. HK(IFRIC) —
Int 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2014 with earlier application permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note 5

to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group and the Company in the preparation of the financial

statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment properties that are measured
at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration of given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation- continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation- continued
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Company had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

jointly controlled entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date, except that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(iii) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair values or another measurement basis required by
another HKFRSs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

When the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the

acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwill - continued

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of

an associate is described below.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members
of the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at the

meetings of the board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

(a)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold.

(b) Provision of services
Revenue from provision of hospital service is recognised
when the services are provided.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms

of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights are stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

4.

FEEMHBRBE &

HE-&

FHREESHBA
REHEZHSWATTREFEREESNR
NESZRGEBEEREMEZHKER

RER -EBRZHELHERELE 2
SHERASTAHEEEZREE I

EREBANEREIRAAHAX

FREESEREA
EREEESEEERMAERBEZ
AFEIZEAENRREZREEE

RRFAEEEE - HHEA ZHERERER
BMBERRRIEREREAE -AEN
RELEARMBEERAREEREHRZ
BEHDE Mt EZE 8 ERNHE
ZEENR BHBBEREENGESERR
Ht 2R MR

ReHEa RAESNARBAEHRHR
ERERGEEaREM2EKERN
BRofFRFTUKEHERE 2E B RENY
MNETFREEPRANERERISES
> R e

TiEREZAMEERTR

T EAE AN EER AR
FRNBAHBEREMRTREBER
k- HETHER AN EEREA
ErESRHERNUERESE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over

their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as

follows:

Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

- continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of the other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
or equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt within

equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities

on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans and
receivables. All regular purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each category

of financial assets are set out below.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(“FVTPL")

Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any

dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any identified impairment losses.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities

and equity instruments are set out below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are classified
separately in respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, respecting the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the bond into equity, is included in equity

(convertible notes reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Convertible notes — continued

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transactions
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to convertible notes reserve. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Foreign currencies
i. Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the functional and presentation currency of the

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair

value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing

rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average

exchange rate; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

iii. Group companies - continued
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as part

of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group's

operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted to use.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal

or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it

is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation. Where the effect of the

time value of money is material, the amount of a provision

is the present value at the end of the reporting period

of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated

at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and to the state-managed
retirement benefits schemes for the employees of the
Group's overseas entities are recognised as an expense
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal

plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits - continued

IV.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the binominal
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account

the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it

is released directly to retained profits).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which the

costs are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income being

negotiated at arm’s length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties — continued

Investment properties under construction have been
accounted for in the same way as completed investment
properties. Specifically, construction costs incurred for
investment properties under construction are capitalised
as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TE®HBFEHE-—15
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions REALTEZS
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: BEASERBEE2ALIE:
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fM—BALTHZALTRENTRRK
related to the Group if that person: ERETIGRG AERNEEEE
I8
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) EHHEFEFNER:;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i BAREBEEAFE
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAEERAEEFATEE
the Group or of a parent of the Group. EEAENKE -
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) MBTIER —HEEBHEHAE
conditions applies: BEREE:
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERHEASEAR-—£H
same group (which means that each parent, MWEEAR (RREBZEA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the M E AR R E R E A
others). HEIEREE) ©
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —EEEBEES —BEEANK
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ERAHEERT (A&
member of a group of which the other entity is a BeHE N ARREE AT M
member). F—EBRAREEZRER
7)o
(iiiy Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBEERBEBER-—BE=FH
party. CR-—FNEIL
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy —HERRE=FEBRNSE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. RARE—BERRE=FER
HEgE = A F o

'I 20 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions — continued
(b) - continued
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between

related parties.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 4, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

4. FEEBREBE-&

MEALES-#&
(b)) —-#&

(v) ZEBDUANEENAEEES
EEECEEAZHEANES
BRARBANFE - MAEES
ZE5 T8 RN 2 EETRE
rEEEBE-

(vi) ZERIEE@QEMATERN
(viip B@) (MEMATHZERR

(

BAYEIEUER (LW

EROSAF) TEERAR
&8

&

R-AT2EBOREREERABAIZE
ZATHERETEEINEERTZZ
ATHENEBRREKE -

NMEBEALZHBEBERIAEEZR
5 BHEEREEALRS

HHAREERZEERR

BTE R EE AT 2 7 B 2 B TSRS
EEEEEHETABARZEERR
URRBEDR 23 FRERE 2R
feEEHOR - HAEE TREHRT — B
FEAENAEEEELREARE B
BT -
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31 March 2014 —Z—WFE=A=+—H

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 4. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect our results of operations.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgements from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable

amount.

e M HRRMEE
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5. R FREERRZERRIE
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(c)
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31 March 2014 =&

5.

CLEE:E R
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(e)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgements are required
in determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
Where the final

tax outcome of these matters is different from the

the ordinary course of business.

amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions

in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is
individually determined at the end of each reporting
period based on its market value and by adopting
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method
assumes each of these properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

(g) Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions
The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will

ultimately vest.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group
has merged its organisation into two operating divisions:
provision of general hospital services, and pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business. The chief operating decision maker has decided
to combine the provision of general hospital service and the
provision of healthcare and hospital management services
into one single operation division in order to manage and
review the performance of the hospital related business
more efficiently. These divisions are the basis on which the

Group reports its segment information.
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GEMBRERWE
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31 March 2014 —&—E&=H=+—H
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. #HEH-&
Segment revenue and results SHEBRRREE
2014 —Z=—E
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EMRRR
PBLURED
RitGeH SHEEHRE
BREE % Eaf ] oyl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTHET THET FiET
Turnover BEE
External sales HIMEE 150,685 2,092,474 - 2,243,159
Inter-segment sales DERHE - 3,981 (3,981) -
Total turnover Pl 2] 150,685 2,096,455 (3,981) 2,243,159
Inter-segment sales are charged at ~ D BEBEE R
arm’s length ATEEKRE
Results E$ |
Segment results DEEE 15,591 86,991 - 102,582
Unallocated other revenue and AABzEMRER WA
income 322
Loss on early redemption of REBRAEZEZEE
promissory note (16,269)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (9,472)
Profit from operations BEEBER 77,163
Finance costs HKER (10,493)
Profit before taxation Rt A0 & A 66,670
Taxation BB (29,216)
Profit for the year REEZHEH 37,454
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31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. NEEHE &
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR
2014 “E—mE

Pharmaceutical

wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of  pharmaceutical

general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
EOHBR
SHUREN
REtZEH TEEHEE
BERRY £ 3] we
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET
Consolidated statement of financial position $&MBERRAE
Assets RE
Segment assets PEEE 190,394 1,429,758 1,620,152
Unallocated corporate assets AP LEEE 17,888
Consolidated total assets REEEAE 1,638,040
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities 2EEE 22,982 381,956 404,938
Promissory note RREE 71,361
Convertible note ARREE 5,012
Deferred taxation ELEHIE 426
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO LEEE 5,880

Consolidated total liabilities REEBHE 487,617

EEBREEBERAT 127
2013/2014 FE 3R
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities - continued

2014 - continued

*

Provision of

SHEEH-®
SHRERAR-W

—E—WMFE-F

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
pharmaceutical

general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
EDHBR
SHBLUREN
Ritman BEEHE
6 B Bl 75 E 35 AAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET FET
Other information Hth g #
Capital expenditure* EREL 4,883 5,263 7 10,153
Depreciation e 6,887 3,653 1 10,551
Amortisation of prepaid ANREHERSE
lease payments 1,069 188 - 1,257
Gainf(loss) on disposal of property, ~ HENXE BERREZ
plant and equipment i,/ (B8R 325 (26) - 299
Impairment loss recognised HE S R EERHIARER
in respect of trade and ZRERR
other receivables 1,329 518 16 1,863
Reversal of impairment loss HES &ﬁﬁﬁﬁglﬁl RIERER
recognised in respect of trade and PACREL 3 E:
other receivables - 746 - 746
Change in fair value of derivative ~ TTEERIAAFELT
financial instruments - - 315 315

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued SHEEH-&
Segment revenue and results SHEBRRREE
2013 —E-=F
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EMHER
DEUAREY
RESEH SEEHE
B iR % ES) H8H 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TER
Turnover BEE
External sales HIMEE 141,525 1,879,064 - 2,020,589
Inter-segment sales DERHE - 6,305 (6,305) -
Total turnover BELm 141,525 1,885,369 (6,305) 2,020,589
Inter-segment sales are charged at SEBEENR
arm's length ALEEWE
Results B8
Segment results SEER 21,065 74,369 - 95,434
Unallocated other revenue and Aoz HEkERBA
income -
Loss on early redemption of REBRALZEZEE
promissory note (1,389)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAMzLELH (11,074)
Profit from operations 9 i 82,971
Finance costs B &R (10,288)
Profit before taxation Rt B0 & A 72,683
Taxation BiE (22,141)
Profit for the year REEZHEH 50,542
ZEBREBEERAA
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. HEH-&
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR
2013 —Z-=%&
Pharmaceutical

wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical

general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
EZMHER
REZEM® ZEEHE
BhRR% % RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Consolidated statement of financial position & M # kil &
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 178,324 1,390,470 1,568,794
Unallocated corporate assets APE2EERE 9,743
Consolidated total assets GEEE4E 1,578,537
Liabilities AR
Segment liabilities PHEE 23,116 367,234 390,350
Promissory note AHLEE 192,635
Convertible note TRREE 4,627
Deferred taxation B IE 490
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEBztEEE 4,396

Consolidated total liabilities GEBEME 592,498

'I 30 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities - continued

2013 - continued

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

SHEEH-®
SHRERAR-W

—E-=FE-F

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of ~ pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
EOMHER
23R EY
RitGEat ZEEHE
B R % Ao E &ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TBT TET TET
Other information Kt &
Capital expenditure* FeNEa 7,026 2,276 - 9,302
Depreciation e 6,193 3,932 420 10,545
Amortisation of prepaid lease BAEETEEH
payments 1,042 182 - 1,224
Loss on disposal of property, HENE RERZEZ
plant and equipment BE - 276 = 276
Impairment loss recognised HESREMERTE
in respect of trade and other BRZREEERE
receivables - 989 - 989
Reversal of impairment loss HEZREMERRIE
recognised in respect of BRZRBEEERE
trade and other receivables 75 476 - 551
Change in fair value of RENEZATFELZE
investment properties - 492 - 492
Change in fair value of derivative fT4£€FT A
financial instruments AFEEZD - - 92 92
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant EARXBEABENE BERRER

and equipment and prepaid lease payments.

BNEENIE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
4. Segment results represent the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on early
redemption of promissory note, other corporate revenue,
income and expenses and taxation. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include part of property, plant
and equipment, cash and bank balances of the central
administration companies. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 10.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate liabilities, promissory note,
convertible note and deferred taxation. Unallocated
corporate liabilities mainly include the accruals
and other payables of the central administration

companies.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC. All of
the Group’s turnover is derived from customers based in the
PRC.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information - continued
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

DHREH-E

WERH @
UTAREEFRREES 2 HRBE
EZREES A

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

FREBEZIREE

2014 2013
—E—mEF ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Hong Kong B 412 416
PRC HE 864,053 864,618
864,465 865,034
Information about major customers EREEERZEH

For the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, no single

customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's turnover.

Revenue from major services and products
The Group’s revenue from its major services and products
was stated in Note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BE-Z—NEN_FT—=F=HA=+—
HEFE HBE-—SFRFHAEEZEE
FEEER10%E UL £ o

REEXERBREGZNR
AEBREBEETERBRER 2 WEH
RERE ISR RMEE27 ©
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. VE BERRME
The Group . -4
Furniture Machinery
and Leasehold and Motor Office
Building fixtures improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
#F GARKE HEMREE HIRER RE  BOERRE E Ly
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR S TR TR FAx
Cost BF
At 1 April 2012 R=B-Zf
MA-A 5,794 3913 28,381 21,992 11,136 22,628 93,844
Additions HE - 119 3,722 3,015 492 1,894 9,242
Exchange realignment ERHE 39 26 188 148 61 142 604
Disposals HE - = (231) - (264) (556) (1,051)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April RZZE—-=%
2013 =ZB=t-HkK
“E-=EMA-A 5,833 4,058 32,060 25,155 11,425 24,108 102,639
Additions #E - 343 2,930 2,752 1,004 3,124 10,153
Exchange realignment ERHE 106 73 572 453 173 407 1,784
Disposals HE - - (383) - (2,621) (550) (3,554)
At 31 March 2014 R=Z-ME
=H=1—H 5,939 4,474 35,179 28,360 9,981 27,089 111,022
Depreciation and impairment #7 % R i {8
At 1 April 2012 R=B-Zf
MA-A 906 3,144 13,370 19,206 6,830 12,579 56,035
Provided for the year rEERE 174 385 4,711 1,079 1,46 2,950 10,545
Written back on disposals HERER - - (231) - (208) (336) (775)
Exchange realignment ERA% 7 23 113 137 40 93 413
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April RZZE—-=%
2013 =B=t-HkK
“E-=EMA-A 1,087 3,552 17,963 20,422 7,908 15,286 66,218
Provided for the year rEERE 178 364 4,467 1,855 1,116 2,571 10,551
Written back on disposals HEREE - - (383) - (2,387) (474) (3,244)
Exchange realignment ERA% 20 64 3N 368 108 252 1123
At 31 March 2014 R=B-WE
=B=t+-H 1,285 3,980 22,358 22,645 6,745 17,635 74,648
Net book values BRERE
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-M%
ZB=t-H 4,654 494 12,821 5,715 3,236 9,454 36,374
At 31 March 2013 R=B-Z%
=B=t+-8 4,746 506 14,097 4,733 3,517 8,822 36,421

The building was held outside Hong Kong under medium

term lease.
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8. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 8. WMHERER
The Group
FEME
2014 2013
—E—MmEF =2 =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FERT
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEEFENEERBEERE:
comprise:
Leasehold land in the PRC RAABEUTRBENFEEZ
under medium term lease HEL 32,620 33,269
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ERIRAZE Z DM :
Current assets (include in trade and RBEE (FFAEZRHEMEK
other receivables and deposits) (Note 14)  HIBRIZE®) (HzE14) 1,255 1,233
Non-current assets FRBEE 31,365 32,036
32,620 33,269
The Group's prepaid lease payments represented payments AEBzBEAEEREARVRFEZ
for land use rights situated in the PRC. The leasehold lands T E AREAE 2 K o FHE L #th 2 FH Hf
have a lease term of 25 to 35 years and the Group has A25E35F MAKEEABEBREREL
processed the land use rights of the leasehold land during b {5 P #E o
the lease term.
At 31 March 2014, prepaid lease payments with carrying R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—H REEY
amount of approximately HK$1,979,000 (2013: Nil) were 1,979,000 T (=B —=F 1 8&) 2F&fH
pledged as collaterals to secure banking facilities granted to HEREBEEFERERARRBETAEEZ

the Group (Note 36).

RITRE M HIRT (MEE36) -

EEBRBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R
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)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 9. BMEMR
The Group
TKE
2014 2013
—ZT—mE ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Completed investment properties BERIREYHE 8,306 8,157
At fair value BOAFEE
At 1 April HEUA—H 8,157 7,611
Exchange realignment & A 149 54
Fair value change ANFEEE - 492
At 31 March R=B=+-—H 8,306 8,157

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2014 and 2013 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out at that date by Messrs. Asset Appraisals
Limited, independent qualified professional valuer not

connected to the Group.

The valuation was arrived at by using the direct comparison
approach with reference to market evidence of transaction

prices for similar properties.

There had been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their

current use.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued ARV b
The carrying amount of investment properties shown above ElREYEZREERSE:
comprises:
2014 2013
—Z—MmEF —2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Land in the PRC: RAEZ i
Medium-term lease FRHEAFE A0 8,306 8,157

The Group leases out its investment properties which are
shop units of a 9-storey composite building to various
tenants. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 year
to 5 years, at the end of which all terms are renegotiable.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. For the
year ended 31 March 2014, property rental income earned
during the year was approximately HK$450,000 (2013:
HK$436,000). There were no direct operating expenses
arising from the investment properties for the years ended
31 March 2014 and 2013. The property held had committed
tenants for the next 1.5 (2013: 2.5) years. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease receivables:

FEERBERENE (B —EIBHEEKX
gra@gsEr) HAF2EHEHF -HER
BEUNSHMESTF  FEHERAREHE
EFEE HEHAEEERAHRE B
EZZE-—NE=A=+—HLEE &
AP BR B 2 M1 338 £ WA #9 5450,0005%8
TT(ZF—=%:436,00087T) - BE_
ZE-OFER-ZF-Z=ZFf=ZHA=+—HL
FE BEAREVEERECEHELER
T oA ZYERRRISE (ZF—=
F25F)9BEMFAERME - NIREH
AR AREMEERE BT A 2 R R & AR FE U E
WM

2014 2013
—Z—MmEF —2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F&ET
Within one year —FR 300 457
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZELF (BREEMF) 54 300
354 757
ZEBREBEERAA

2013/2014 FE 3R
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 9. WMEMER-—I®
Details of the Group's investment properties and information RZE—NER-_ZF—=F5=R=1+—
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 B AEEZRENEFERERATE
are as follows: BHRzEROT :

Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 as at 2014
R-E—QmEF
E— EZR® BE=W ZRFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT

Investment property unit NP EZREYEEN
located in the PRC - 8,306 - 8,306
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 as at 2013
R=ZE—=F
B B B={ ZAYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

Investment property unit VAPBEZREYZHEEN
located in the PRC - 8,157 - 8,157

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

As at 31 March 2014, investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$8,306,000 (2013: Nil) were
pledged as collaterals to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 36).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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10. GOODWILL 10. &
The Group
FEME
HK$'000
FHET
Cost B#F
At 1 April 2012 R=Z——FMB—H 1,063,231
Exchange realignment & o A 2
At 31 March 2013, 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 RZ=-Z—=5#=A=+—H§-
—E-=FMA-BRK
—E-WE=A=1+—H 1,063,233
Accumulated impairment losses Rt EBE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, R=Z——FM™B—H-
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E-—=5=ZRA=+—A8"
—E-=FMA-HBHERK
—Z-NE=HB=+—8 274,813
Carrying value IRmE{E
At 31 March 2014 R-Z—HMFE=A=+—H 788,420

At 31 March 2013 R=Z-—=f5=F=+—H 788,420

EERBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R e
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10. GOODWILL - continued

11.

Note:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of the cash generating units in with goodwill
was allocated, and determined that no impairment loss on goodwill
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (2013: Nil).

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash generating units (CGUs). The
carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment
losses) as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are allocated as

follows:

10. 8-

11.

B &

RBEHR AEBEFGEIRBEZREE
4By 2z AU [E £ 58 - 3 E 3 AR B R E
EiEF%AEﬁ‘E&E{@ﬁEH&E%WﬁEE% =

Fas

ERBERENFZFHERGRS M B RR T
TR ER -

R E AR
RAENRNE HECARETHARS
BEEM -R-F-NER-F-=F=
A=+-B BBEZEREE GIRRHH
EFE) SBOT

The Group
.30
2014 2013
—Z—MmE =Z2-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Jiaxing City Shuguang Western and EEMmBXPABLESER
Chinese Composite Hospital Company BRAT ([FZHEEEX])
Limited (“Jiaxing Shuguang”)
— provision of general hospital services - R ERHES EERRE
in the PRC 2,899 2,899
Nurture Fit Limited and its subsidiaries REERARRENRE AT
— pharmaceutical wholesale and — AR B Z L 3 R 2 8F
distribution and pharmaceutical DR EYZEBHEZER
retail chain business in the PRC 785,169 785,169
Quanzhou Huihao RN E 5
— pharmaceutical retail chain business —RABEZEYTEEHEER
in the PRC 352 352
788,420 788,420

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued
Jiaxing Shuguang - Provision of general hospital

services in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 4-year period, as the directors consider the lease
term of hospital premises as the budgeted period and a
discount rate of 12.28% (2013: 10.40%) per annum. Cash
flow projections during the budgeted period are based on
the same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to
the relevant business and consistent with external sources
of information. Assuming the discount rate increases by
150 basis points, there is still sufficient headroom and no
provision for impairment is required for goodwill allocated as
at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

11.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H
mERENR &

REBEX-RIOEREGFESNERE
%
HBREEEENZATRESEDREFER
BEAEEE MEAEEREEEEMR
HEZRENFH (ESRABRYES
HEFHAREDRE) MBBEEMRSLEZ
BeREEA URNEEEF12.28%
(ZE—=F:1040%) st E - FEEHRA
ZBEEeRETER DEREEFEE B AE
AzEREREFE EEBMEG FE
AREECEMEIBEZERBRATELR
ZEMEEEEH FTEEHNRSEELESE
U RHAEERETKRESEAE T
EEREBEBIRERAEHMEREZHE
REEREERNE-

e RTERRMMEEEE 2 FERE
I BRSBTS ERARRF o RERITE XL M
1SOEEY NERAZE HBEMRN
—E-NOF=ZA=t—HZFokiE
ARAEREB(ZE—=F:8)-

EEBRBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R
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11.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - Pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical

retail chain business in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period and a discount rate of 10.33%
(2013: 9.01%) per annum. The cash flow projections during
the budgeted period are based on the same expected gross
margins throughout the budget period. The cash flows
beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated using
a steady 1% (2013: 1%) per annum by reference to market
rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant business and consistent with external sources of
information. Assuming the growth rate decreases by or the
discount rate increases by 150 basis points, there is still
sufficient headroom and no provision for impairment is
required for goodwill allocated as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
Nil).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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hReEESEVZ2ATKESEIREFE
REETEEE mMERAEERESER
It EZRERFHUKBERSHZ
BeREEA URITEEEF10.33%
(ZE—=F:9.01%)stE-FEEHAZ
Benafil DEREEREHRRER
ZREAENEAE - BEHEZBRER
BRIZEMHMNEN% (ZF—=
1% ZBEFEREBEE - HIEREY
THEAETSEZRAFHIERE - EEEM
5 sTEARESEAMKIEZERBRET
REERZEMEERE TSERLERS
ErBEUzREAEBRRAETRESHE
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11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Quanzhou Huihao - Pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate of 10.33%
(2013: 9.01%) per annum. The cash flow projections during
the budgeted period are based on the same expected gross
margins throughout the budget period. The cash flows
beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated using
a steady 1% (2013: 1%) per annum by reference to market
rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant business and consistent with external sources of
information. Assuming the growth rate decreases by or the
discount rate increases by 150 basis points, there is still
sufficient headroom and no provision for impairment is
required for goodwill allocated as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
Nil).

MR RN

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

1. BEREINR &

RMEF -RPBEZEMHRBR S H
%
WReEEBENVZ2TKESEIREFE
REETEEE mMERABEERESER
it Ee RERFHMBEEMSHZ
RERERA URNEEEF1033%
(ZE2E—=F19.01%)5tE -BEHAZ
ReREfEA DEREEBEEHRRER
ZHEAENEZAE - AEHEZRERN
BRAIZEMHBAEUI% (ZE—=
1% ZBEFREREBEEF - MBREY
TEBMZZREAEHERE - EEEMN
& SEARESEMREZERBRT
HHBEZIMEEEE FTSEFHURS
EEBUREAEBRRAETKESHE

BReHABEEREER R

FrE AT E R R RAERE K 2 45 E Rk
WESNEBFTBERER BRI RER
DRI ERZIMNSOBEL NERAZE
B MBERR=-—ZE-—HF=A=+—H
ZHAREENEREREBE (=S —=
Fim)o
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12.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

12. RHBARZER

The Company

. 34|

2014 2013

—Z—MmE =E—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
Unlisted shares, at costs FEEmERMD BERAE 1,243,078 376,267
Less: Impairment loss recognised W ERARREEIER (267,575) (267,575)
975,503 108,692

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

free and recoverable/repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries are
reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined
by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected

to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2014 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In the preparation for the listing of shares of Wanjia Group
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group
underwent the Reorganisation, and as a result of which the
outstanding amount of approximately HK$866,811,000 due
from Timely Hero to the Company on 3 September 2013 was
capitalised in the Company’s investment cost on the same
date (Note 2).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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13. INVENTORIES

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

Finished goods 2R

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

13. #K
The Group
*TEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHT FHET

133,939 124,038

14. BHREMBHRRERE®

DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
%M ¥4
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mE —ZF-—= —Z-mE —ZF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TET FHERT TET
Trade receivables g5 BWHE 284,223 358,812 - -
Bill receivables EWEE 7,748 7,490 - =
Prepayments and deposit paid FAfTREREAES 140,693 68,747 355 354
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE (HEES)
(Note 8) 1,255 1,233 - -
Other receivables H it W 101,789 75,966 - -
535,708 512,248 355 354
Less: Impairment loss R E M ERTIERRZ
recognised in respect of HEERE
other receivable (7,564) (6,441) - -
528,144 505,807 355 354
FEBFEMERA T

2013/2014 FE 3R
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Included in the Group's other receivables as at 31 March
2014 is a loan of approximately HK$47,745,000 (2013:
HK$46,892,000) advanced to Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Limited (“Zhuhai Jiulong”), which is an independent third
party, and is secured by the entire issued share capital of
Zhuhai Jiulong, carries interest at 5% (2013: 5%) per annum
and is recoverable on demand. Included in the Group's
other receivables as at 31 March 2014 is another loan of
approximately HK$18,404,000 (2013: HK$ Nil) advanced
to an independent third party, which is unsecured, carries

interest at 6% per annum and is recoverable on demand.

Included in the Group’s other receivables as at 31 March
2014 were value added tax (“VAT"”) recoverable of
approximately HK$9,750,000 (2013: HK$10,753,000).

As at 31 March 2014, bills receivable of approximately
HK$7,748,000 (2013: HK$7,490,000) will be matured within
six months after the end of the reporting period. All the bills

receivable are denominated in RMB.

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally payable
from 30 to 90 days of issuance. Payment terms with
customers from general hospital and healthcare and hospital
management services are normally payable from 0 to 30
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

based on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

14. BERAEMBHRRERES

—#&
AEER-_ZE-NF=A=+—HzH
thEKREERERFFRABIE=F 2
Iﬂi;‘naéaﬁﬁﬁl&ﬁ“a(r%;n%EJ)
M#47,745,0008 T (ZF—=
46,892,000;%75)&EEI$7nﬁéz:%%rs
ERTRAFEET REFEY (ZF
—ZHF:5%) T ERARERYE - K&
BR-Z-—NF=F=+—HZHMEK
MEBES - FBNTF—EBILE=FH
ZEF#18,404,0008 T (=& —=
THERL) ZERRBER - RFFNE6%
FERARERYME -

AEBR-ZE-—NF=ZA=+—-HzH
ﬂﬂﬁ&ﬂﬁuﬁ@%ﬁﬂlﬁz@ eEB ([1BE
$1)#9,750,0008 L (= E—=%F:
10,753,000 7T ) °

RZZE-—NE=A=+—0 EREEY
7,748,000 T (=& — =% 17,490,000
B BRBRERREEAREEF
FREUEBEUARYE:
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

14. BERAEMBHRRERES

The Group
*TEH
2014 2013
-l —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
0 to 90 days 0290H 227,618 293,405
91 to 180 days 91£180H 28,337 59,004
181 to 365 days 1812365H 16,002 3,931
Over 365 days HBiB365H 14,092 4,164
286,049 360,504
Less: Impairment loss recognised B S SRR R R 2
in respect of trade receivables RE R (1,826) (1,692)
284,223 358,812

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which
are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful
receivables because there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it
have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by
the Group to the counterparty. The individually impaired
trade receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the directors of the Company assessed that
the amounts are not expected to be recovered based on
past default experience, payment history and subsequent

settlement of the customers.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in Renminbi.

FXREBECESRRFRBEBREREEH
R B AR J80 5 1 A< 5 8] 3 4 b SR PR
RERKREBE 2R FEREBERELZ
FEERTEERSHWRBMHAYE -
AEETERLSEHTETMERR
HEMEEMEIRE - NEEE-ER AL
FEBERRZHEF 2 EAFAFELHE -
18 B 1B 2 B 5 F& Wk IR T B2 T % B X
REEcEFER MRBEBEEER -
NREHEREFERENR A RAESM
AR ERAER A ATURE -

AEEZEZRUWHBREZEREAEAAR
WatE-

EEBRBEEBERAT
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. BERAEMBRRERZRE
DEPOSITS - continued — 8
Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but CRMEEREEZRABIRITZ
not impaired R
The Group
&M
2014 2013
—E—mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Overdue by: R
1 to 90 days 1£90H 28,337 59,004
91 to 180 days 91£180H 15,884 3,931
Over 180 days HiE180H 12,384 2,472
Total g 56,605 65,407
Movements in the provision for impairment loss BOIBBRAZAREGIRER S
of trade receivables
The Group
30
2014 2013
—E—mE —ZT-—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
At 1 April ROEA—H 1,692 1,375
Exchange realignment [ 5 SRR 26 9
Reversal of provision for the year FREEERE (645) (551)
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZBEEE 753 859
At 31 March R=B=+—H 1,826 1,692

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. RHERAMBBHRAR RS
DEPOSITS - continued — iR
Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERSERRAZIER
The Group
*EH
2014 2013
—E2—pmE —E2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Over 365 days #HiB365H 1,826 1,692
Movement in the provision for impairment loss of other HMEWRE 2 RESEREZ PR
receivables is summarised as follows: WM
The Group
*xEH
2014 2013
—ZE—-pEF ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
At 1 April RMEUBE—H 6,441 6,269
Exchange realignment & W% 114 42
Reversal of provision for the year FREFERRD (101) =
Impairment losses recognised ERRFZHERBIE 1,110 130
At 31 March R=A=+-—8H 7.564 6,441
EZEEREEBRA A

2013/2014 FE 3R
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

15. BAFEBBIRZINIEZ M
RE

The Group
*TEH
2014 2013
-l —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET

Investment at fair value BAFEZRE

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s investment in open-end
asset portfolio wealth management products were
designated at financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of which fair values are determined by reference to
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant PRC

market.

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1,259 =

R-BE-—NME=A=+—H0 NEEREHA
BRREEHCHEBENERZRERETE
AEANTEBERERIIRZMEEE H
AFEDSEREBRPETEISZE
SHEREMEE -

16. fTE €M IR

The Group and the Company ERERFTAT
Redemption
option
contract
BEEEH
HK$'000
F#E T
At 1 April 2012 A\—E—_—FWA—H 161
Fair value change ANEEEE (92)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-E—=F5=ZA=Z+—HK
—E-=ZFMA—H 69
Fair value change ANEEZE 315

At 31 March 2014 BW-E—mE=BA=+—H 384

'I 50 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group and the Company - continued
Note:

Derivative financial instruments represented the early redemption
option element of the convertible note issued by the Group and
are measured at fair value using the binomial tree pricing model
(“Binomial Model”) at the end of each reporting period.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 March 2014, cash and bank balances of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$66,905,000
(2013: HK$67,648,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, but conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorization to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2014, certain bank deposits of the Group of
approximately HK$17,431,000 (2013: HK$3,609,000) were
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at 2.8%
(2013: 3.0%) per annum and were denominated in RMB.

16.

17.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

TTESMIA-&
FRERFLTF -
By &E -

METHTAEAREBRTZ2UTRRREN
REBDZEERD RREREBREA=R
AR EBERNK ([ZEKXEK]) LA FEFT

B

BearRBTREREENET

X

R-EBE-NFE=ZA=+—HB AKEZR
SRBITESKBIEUARE (TARK])
FT{E 5B 8 #466,905,0008 T (=& —=
F 167,648,000 L) 2B  ARER
AERRBRAEMER  HREREANMNME
BEEGROIREE SERNESEREN
BARBHIBABIING REBEREFEBR
TRESARBLBAEMEIET
INEE ZETE ©

RITERANOCHYBBETEICHZ
ERBRITZAERK-

R-BE-—NE=A=+—H0 AEEE
FRITERH17,431,0008 T (=ZF—=
£ 13,609,000 T ) EFARTFAEE 2
RATHE 2 KPR T LUK H - 2K IR
TERRFENE28E(ZE—=F:3.0
B)GtERUARMEHE

EEBRBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R
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31 March 2014 =&—MFE=H=+—H

18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. & &
Number of share Amount
Bin&E &
HK$'000
TER
Authorised: ERE -
Ordinary shares ZER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each AR (E0.017# T 2 il A%
- at 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, -R-ZE—_FMA—A-
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E—=%=A=+-—H"
—Z—=FmMB—-AR
—EZ—NME=A=+—H 110,000,000,000 1,100,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares &K Z#E o] 12 IR (B S IR
Non-voting convertible preference BREEIETZEREE
shares of HK$0.01 each ] #8 B% 2 ST AR
- at 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, -R-ZE—-_FMA—A-
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E—-=%=A=+-—8H"
—E-Z=fMA—-HR
—EZ—NME=RA=+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTR#E:
Ordinary shares ZER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEOVBTZEER
—at 1 April 2012 “R=ZF-—=-FMA—H 910,938,264 9,109
— converted from convertible —BHRARRELR
preference shares 173,000,000 1,730
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEOIBTZEBR
— at 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 -R=F-=%=5=+—-H
F—E-—=%WAH—H 1,083,938,264 10,839
— exercise of share options —TREBERE 69,550,000 696
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each B E{E0.01# T & iE A
- at 31 March 2014 -R-Z—ME=B=+—H 1,153,488,264 11,535

'I 52 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

18. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 18. E&F — &
Number of share Amount
BRiT&E f ]
HK$'000
TER
Non-voting convertible preference shares — HEIRZRE[1Z IR E LI (BaF(@@))
(note (a))
Non-voting convertible preference shares of & REEO0.01E T2 EERERE
HK$0.01 each ARRELER
—at 1 April 2012 -R=-—ZFE——-FMA—H 271,500,000 2,715
— conversion to ordinary shares —EHBRAEBR (173,000,000) (1,730)
Non-voting convertible preference shares of & RE{EO0.018 T2 BT EZHRE
HK$0.01 each T]RRELR
—at 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 -R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—H
E=—Z2—-=%MNA—H 98,500,000 985
— issue on redemption of —RERAREERET
promissory note 504,201,680 5,042
Non-voting convertible preference BSEEE.VIEBTZEIRRE
shares of HK$0.01 each ] 3 B% 1% 5t B
- at 31 March 2014 -R-B—NFE=ZA=+—H 602,701,680 6,027

Note: Bt &

(@) The preference shares are non-voting shares. The holders () BERAERZERO -BEREAA
of the preference shares are entitled to receive the same BPREZERIBRIEFAMRBZKS
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In addition, the o AR A ABRBERRIZH
holders of the preference shares have the right to convert REEBBRESEAELRERIEA AT
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at EER -BREERELEETHESR
any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1 to 1 each. W57 A F LA
The conversion price will be subject to adjustments only upon
occurrence of certain dilutive events.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the FRBITZ2HERMESFEYHEER

then existing shares in all respects. ZERERNEBRE AL

EERBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R o
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31 March 2014 =&—MFE=H=+—H

19. RESERVES 19. & i
The Company b /N
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share Capital payment  Contributed  Convertible Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus  note reserve profits Total
HERE
Btz TRERE (RHER)/
B3 & E £ bd ] BARR 10 RERT #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TER TET TET TEL TEL
t 1 April 2012 R-ZE-—_EMA-A 190,250 579,395 14,862 1,452 2,537 (22,173) 766,323
Issue of share options RITERE - - 1,284 - - - 1,284
Loss for the year AEEFR = - - - - (7,649) (7,649)
At 31 March 2013 and RZZ-=%
1 April 2013 =R=+-HR
“Z-=£WA-H 190,250 579,395 16,146 1,452 2,537 (29,822) 759,958
Issue of non-redeemable BORUEE
convertible preference shares RRELER 114,958 - - - - - 114,958
Exercise of share options THEBRE 11,761 - (427) - - = 11,334
Lapse of share options IR K3 = = (74) = - 74 -
Profit for the year AEER - - - - - 71,832 71,832
Dividend by way of a distribution  SAZ¥2RA
in specie (Note 35) TR 2 R E (B3E35) - (283,785) - - - = (283,785)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZ—-ME=A=+-H 316,969 295,610 15,645 1,452 2,537 42,084 674,297
(@) The contributed surplus of the Company represents (@) ADBZHANBEHIBEARADAARER

the difference between the aggregate net assets of the

subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group

reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the

Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. RESERVES - continued

The Company - continued

(b)

The Company had distributable reserves (including
share premium, capital reserve and retained profits)
of approximately HK$654,663,000 as at 31 March
2014 (2013: HK$739,823,000). Under the Companies
Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend the Company
is able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be distributed
out of the retained profits or other reserves, including
the share premium account and capital reserve of the
Company.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

19. i — 8

BT &

by RZE-DNE=A=+-—H =K
ArRIBEAHYIRFE(EBERSG
BE - BEAREBERERBRZAN)L
654,663,000 T (=& —=
739,823,000 T) - IRIBFMAERFSE
NEE (RIBFT)E228  EAR LD
RAZABERAARMARRT -
MBESRBIKEBREATEEED
EEHEHRARERBREREHR2E
%o BIARDR 2RO EERRT LD
RS AR B A SR F R R R
AARZEBERME REER
KAATRBEFNREMEE (B
R RERRERFE) BT

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. B REMERIEA

The Group The Company
F5E F0F

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —F-= —g-mE —E2E-=F
HK$"000 HK$’'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TERT TET THERT TET
Trade payables B 5 EMARIE 204,136 292,647 - -
Bills payables (NS 36,070 4,350 - =
Receipts in advance fa U FE 22,989 3,030 - =
Accruals and other payables  FE5TE AR EthfE(I I8 47,064 31,642 2,940 1,452
310,259 331,669 2,940 1,452

AEBR-ZE-—NE=A=+—H2ZE
FERAREMENRESREBE RS WE
ZEBE£#16,117,0008 T (ZF—=
1,242,000/ 7T) °

Included in the Group’s accruals and other payables as at
31 March 2014 were deposits received from customers of
approximately HK$16,117,000 (2013: HK$1,242,000).

EERBEEBERAT 155
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2014 =& —MFE=H=+—H

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. W5 K H it FE 1 R IR — 48

— continued
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on UTHARBERR2E G EBAIRIERE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: ZHHEBRER 24T
The Group
*TEE
2014 2013
—2-mE —Z-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 137,660 164,093
91 to 180 days 91£180H 16,007 59,166
181 to 365 days 181£365H 19,058 54,548
Over 365 days HBiB365H 31,411 14,840
204,136 292,647
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is BEETEMZTYHEEHAN F30AR
in range from 30 to 90 days. £90H °
The bills payables will be matured within six months from the EBAEERREHARETSERREE -

end of the reporting period. The bills payables were secured

by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bills payable are

denominated in RMB.

BNREUE TEERRITESR
H-FIBERNRBIIUARBEIE

RAE R K

21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. |ITHRE
The Group
XEKHE
2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Bank borrowings — secured RITEE —FEA
(Notes (a) and (b)) (Mt sE@) K (b)) 88,088 50,672

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

21. BITHEE—&

The Group
F%E
2014 2013
—Z—MmE =E—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
Carrying amount repayable: BEEREEHE:
Within one year shown under current —FR FTARBAE
liabilities 88,088 50,672
Notes: B 3

As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$62,920,000 carries variable interest rate
ranging from 7.78% to 8.40% per annum, and secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$25,168,000 carries fixed
interest rate at 8.10% per annum.

As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank borrowings were
secured by certain bank deposits and land and building (Note
36), and were secured by corporate guarantee by inter-group
company.

As at 31 March 2013, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$12,359,000 were secured by personal
guarantee by Mr. Weng Jiaxing, an ex-director of the
Company and an independent third party and secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$37,077,000 were secured by
corporate guarantee by independent third parties, carries fixed
interest rate at 7.57% to 7.80% per annum.

As at 31 March 2013, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,236,000 were secured by corporate
guarantee by inter-group company, carries variable interest
rate at 7.80% per annum.

The secured bank borrowings were denominated in Renminbi.

NR-ZZ—NE=A=+—F0 KR
1T E 462,920,000 T T3 LA F7.78
BEZ840EZAEFREFE MAEIR
R 1T B & 4925,168,00058 7t J5 1A 8.10
EZzBEEFRETE -

RZZ—NE=ZR=+—H FEHR
TEEDUETRITERUAR L iRk &
F (MiEE36) FRIEF L AEBALRF
Bz AREREER -

A—E—=F=A=1+—H FKFL
ITIEE 12,359,000 T I LA DA B 2
— BRI EESMARER —BBIE=
TR ZEAERERER WA KT
$R1TE B 437,077,000 7T J5 LA 3L 58
SHFRMZATAERERER REE
FERR7 S7TEET S0EFTE ©

RZZBE—=F=A=+—0 HIKHE
1TfEE#91,236,000/8 LD LB A A 7
BAREZARARRERER B2
FERE7 80EF B

BEMABRTEEIUARETE

EEBREEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R
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31 March 2014 =&

22.

23.

CLEE:E R

—mF=RA=+—H

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

On 9 May 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Hero Vision at a consideration of HK$157,300,000,
of which HK$33,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of
convertible note (the “Convertible Note”). The Convertible
Note initially matures at the second anniversary of the issue
date. On 8 May 2009, the maturity date of Convertible
Note was extended from 8 May 2009 to 9 May 2017. The

conversion price per share was HK$1.90.

The Convertible Note contains three components,
The

equity element is presented in equity heading “Convertible

redemption option, liability and equity elements.

note reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 10.97%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible note reserve.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

22.

23.

B IERERBRRZRIA
FEAFEZERRRZAEAEEAR RER
BRBREE

CIE: Y%

A—ETLFHEANA AEBURE
157,300,000 T WIBE S 2 HERTR
78> R {E 33,000,000 T 2 E B 34T H]
BEREE (TAIRREE]) ISR
EERBITAREAMBFEIREIER -
RZZEZAFEREANA TEREEZZ
HECH-_ZEZTAFHEANBEEZ
Z—tFERANA -BREKER1.90%

JC ©

‘I#Hﬁ%‘eiﬁ’@%ﬁa@ RERE -BERER

fooEmEDNIERKR AR EE
HEIBET2M -BEHS 2EBRAES
10.97 o

BEBIZAFEDUSEEFTRRE
%z mENRFE - FheEAERER
o 2BE D ATRREERZE 2R
RAEZA o
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

23. MR RE &

The Convertible Note recognised in the consolidated REREVBERRRERAZATRREEZ

statement of financial position was calculated as follows: STEWMT

The Group
and the
Company
*RER

> 3/
HK$'000
FET

Fair value of Convertible Note issued
on 9 May 2007
Derivative financial instruments

Equity component

Liability component on initial recognition and

amortised cost at 9 May 2007

Amortised cost at 1 April 2012
Interest expense

Interest payable

Amortised cost at 31 March 2013 and

REZZBZLFHEANABITZ

ABRBREEZAFEE 54,750
fTEEMITA 514

EEID (25,125)

NTRAK2EEBHI K

RZEBEZSELFRANB 2 HEKR 30,139
R-ZE—_—FNH—HBZEHEKAN 4,282
FE B & 475

FE R 2 (130)

R-BE—=5=A=+—-80K

1 April 2013 —E-—=FMA—-HZEHEAK 4,627
Interest expense FEF X 515
Interest payable EARE (130)
At 31 March 2014 BR-ZE—WNE=A=+—H 5,012
As at 31 March 2014, the outstanding principal amount of R-ZE-—ME=A=+—H0 JBREHE
Convertible Note was HK$6,500,000 (2013: HK$6,500,000). 2 e R {EE 7N £ %6 456,500,000 5T (=

F—=%:6,500,000/8 ) °

Interest expense on the convertible note is calculated using ARBREEAEEZNERBRAEE
the effective interest method by applying the effective RIBEEHD 2ERRZE1097EFE -

interest rate of 10.97% to the liability component.

EERBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R o
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24. PROMISSORY NOTE 24. ZARFTE
On 8 March 2010, the Company issued promissory RZZE-—ZF=ANB RQFETEE
note (the “Promissory Note”) in a principal amount of £§290,000,000 B TR —_E_ZF =
HK$290,000,000 due on 7 March 2020. The Promissory BLtHBHBzAREE ([ARLEE]) -
Note was issued for acquiring the entire issued share capital EAZEDABBREERATZIE
of Nurture Fit Limited and bear interest at 1% per annum, BAORAMEIT REMNRI1EFE > B8F
payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective interest rate is FRE—IR - BBRFERIE-
3%.
The Group
and the
Company
*EER
r. 3/
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2012 AZE——FMHA—H 197,735
Interest expense FERE X 5,723
Interest payable EARE (2,212)
Redemption during the year FRER (8,611)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R=Z-—=F=A=Z+—-HERE
—E-=fFfMA—H 192,635
Interest expense FERZ 3,963
Interest payable EARIE (1,506)
Redemption during the year FREE (123,731)

At 31 March 2014 W-E—mE=B=+—H 71,361

'I 60 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROMISSORY NOTE - continued

During the year ended 31 March 2014, part of the
Promissory Note with principal amount of HK$140,000,000
(2013: HK$10,000,000) was early redeemed by the
Company at a consideration equals to the principal amount,
of which HK$20,000,000 (2013: HK$10,000,000) was
satisfied by cash and HK$120,000,000 (2013: Nil) was
satisfied by issue of 504,201,680 convertible preference
shares of the Company at notional value of HK$0.01 each.
A loss on early redemption of the Promissory Note of
approximately HK$16,269,000 (2013: HK$1,389,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2014, the outstanding principal of
the Promissory Note was HK$80,000,000 (2013:
HK$220,000,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

24, RRATRE &

25.

REBE-_Z-—-NEF=Z=A=+—H L
FE AQPRACECREBERLALSEAR
140,000,000 T (=& — =&
10,000,000 7t ) 2 & 10 A& X 215> X
BEALREMESE  H 20,000,000 5T
(==& —=%:10,000,00087T) LR &
* {+-M120,000,0008 T (=& —=
FE)AZREREREHEOVB TR
504,201,680 A8 1t 7] 2 AJ 2 Ig & % IR
ZEFAX[M -HMRRPFEEOALREZE
B#HAH16,269,0008B T (= —=5F:
1,389,000 T) ERNmEeBEaREME
W 25 R FERR o

R-ZBE—NE=A=+—RH ERLEHE>
i AREEARNLEEA80,000,00087w (==
— =% :220,000,000/% 7T )

i IE 1R TR
ATATFERBEFERI 2 EEE
EHEEBRAT 2B

Deferred tax liabilities: BIERAAR:
Convertible
note
CIE: Y3 %
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2012 R=Z——FMBE—H 547
Credited to profit or loss (Note 32) s AEE (FIaE32) (57)

At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE-—=F=A=1+—-HEK

—E-—=FMAB—H 490
Credited to profit or loss (Note 32) s AEBE (MiFE32) (64)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—MNEFE=A=+—H 426
ZEBREBEERAA

2013/2014 FE 3R
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GEMBRERWE

31 March 2014 =&—MFE=H=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued
Deferred tax liabilities: — continued
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

25. IRIERIE — 48

RERAAR: —#
UTTAMB2E®E WMET ZIELER
THAERR D AT

2014 2013

—E—MmEF Shi=5
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#xT FE& T
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE - -
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEEE (426) (490)
(426) (490)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company has unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$39,091,000 (2013: HK$39,514,000) and nil (2013: nil)
respectively available to set off against future assessable
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams of the subsidiaries which incurred the
tax losses. These tax losses in Hong Kong may be carried
forward indefinitely and the tax losses in PRC may be expired

within five years.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a) Pre-listing share options

Pursuant to the pre-listing share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
directors, employees, consultants, and advisors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. All of these options have duration of 10
years from and including 10 May 2002 subject to the

terms of the scheme.

The Company'’s pre-listing share options are exercisable
in three equal trenches from 10 November 2002,
10 May 2003 and 10 May 2004,
May 2012 at an exercise price of HK$2.35 per share.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, 237,777 pre-
listing share options outstanding at 1 April 2012 were
lapsed. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, there is no

respectively, to 9

outstanding pre-listing share option.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

26. BBz st &

(a)

L A RS A 4
REARAR-ZTZT-_FMA=-+
Az EmAERES S A0
B A A TE R R R R i B
BLTZRNERAQFREMHEL T
ZEMES -EE BEARFEAIAR
HARBEARRAB R 2B RE B
RBEMAL - REFEURR FIB
ZEBRER-ZSZE-FHATH
(BfEZA)BIOFARBR-

ARNT LT AERES & 2 BIR
—EE-F+-A+H-ZEB=
FERATHR=-ZZEWNFHEA+
BE-Z- R AABHH 2
=T E SHATERERS
TEEABR23ISBT - REBZE=
E-—=ZF=ZA=t—HLFER:
R-ZZB-——FWNA—-HEKRITEZ
237,777 L AT R EE KK e
R-ZE-NEFR=-ZF—-—=F5=A
=t+—B BMEEKRTELTAE
PR HE o
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31 March 2014 =& —MFE=H=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme
also adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
director, employee, any supplier of goods or services,
any customer, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technical support or
any shareholder of the Group or any investee or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the post-listing
share option scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
No participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in
full, would result in the total number of shares already
issued under all the options granted to him or her
that are for the time being subsisting and unexercised
in any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue. The exercise price of
the share options will be determined at the higher
of the average of closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options; the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; and the nominal value of the shares. The
share options are exercisable for a period not later than

10 years from the date of grant.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b) LikMasE

BEXAQXATFIR-_ZZT_FWA
“t+BERMz ETEERES S
RATRATUSERHEBREZZK
BB TzRERFEEEMES -
BE - EEMBRBEAHES  E[
EEURREHFR BFRFEME
MEB2EMALRERE K E
ERAMSREER ZEMRER
AEEREAREARARZREER
FRBTEMES2EMFEARE
ARBEAATRG ZBRAE LU
BLERALT - RIEETEBREST
BN TFRECERESR ZRMHE
ETBBBARRTRERITRA
10% i RBEATEE B EHR
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options — continued

New share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 10 August
2011, the Company may grant options at the price
not less than the highest of (1) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (2) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (3)
the nominal value of the share on the date of grant to
any employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
including any executive and non-executive directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group. The total
numbers of shares may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the relevant class of shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit
being exceeded. Any grant of options to a connected
person (including but not limited to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder) or its associates
must be approved by the independent nonexecutive
directors (excluding any independent nonexecutive
director who is the grantee of the options). No
participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in
full, would result in the total number of share issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to him or her that for the time being subsisting and
unexercised in any 12-month period would exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue. The share
options are exercisable for a period not later than 10
years from the date of grant but subject to the early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

e M HRRMEE
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26. fRRR MRt ®I— 48
(b) EmimaxiE—i&
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options — continued
Details of the movements in the number of share

options during the year are as follows:

Number of share options

26. fRRR MRt B — 48

(b) LT W A% 4 — 4R
FRBREHBEZSFROT

HkENE
Outstanding Granted fExercised  Adjustment Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at31March Date of price
Type of participants 2013 the year the year the year the year 2014 grant per share Exercise period
RI$-Z% RIS-EE
mA—-H ZR=+-8 -1
SHEER RFTE FREH ERfTE ENEE EREN CESH RHAM fiEm T
Directors
B2
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 1,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
SEREE “EENE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAZ
=A=tH “Z-AEZA=thA
Mr. Zheng Gang 800,000 - (800,000) - - - 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
PELE “E2ENE 058 ZBEAFNBZTHE
=B=+H ZE-AEZAZTAA
2,814,084 - - - - 2,814,084 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
2-%F 1128n —B-BF=A-+=HEZ
ZAtNA “Z-REZB=1=H
6,700,000 - (6,700,000) - - - 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
“B--F 0.6  —E-Z§-J-R%
t=A=t-H “E-ZEtA=t-H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 1,700,000 - (1,700,000) - - - 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
RelxE “EENE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAZ
=A=tH “Z2-AEZA=tAhA
2,084,507 - - - - 2,084,507 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“B-%E 1128 —E-B£=f-+=ZR%
=Rt ZE-REZACTZA
6,700,000 - (6,700,000) - - - 30 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
“2-—-f 0.16%%7  ZB-ZF-H-AZ
T=A=1H ZB-ZF+ZB=+-H

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 26. FEBx 4 &t B — 4"
(b) Post-listing share options — continued (b) LSRR E—&
Number of share options
BEENE

Outstanding Granted ‘Exercised  Adjustment Llapsed  Outstanding Exercise

at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price
Type of participants 2013 the year the year the year the year 2014 grant per share Exercise period

RZS-Z% RZZ-mE

mA—-H ZA=t-H 14
SHERN RFTHE ERH HERTHE ERRE EREN R&TE HHAHY fifER fiEs
Dr. Jiang Tao 800,000 - - - - 800,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
EREL “EENE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAEZ
=B=1H ZE-AEZA=TAA
1,563,380 - - - - 1,563,380 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
Z2-%F 1128n —B-BFZA-+ZRZ
=Bt+IH ZE-REZACTZH
2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - - 30 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to

31 December 2013
“E--f 0.16%7 “E-Z%-f-RHE

tZB=+H ZB2-ZE+ZB=+-H

Dr. Huang Jiaging 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2014

EMESE “E2ENE 05%% ZBEAENAZTAZ
=R=tH ZE-mEZAZTAA

312,676 - - - - 312,676 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to

22 March 2015

“2-%f 11288 —3-3F=A-1=A%

ZAtNB “E-RF=f=t=H

1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to

31 December 2013
“2--f 01687  =E--%-A-HE
T-A=t-H ZZ-ZE+ZA=+-H

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013

- 0.168%  —B-Z§-B-RHEZ
A “Z-ZE+ZA=t-A

IHREE

30,174,647 - (20,900,000) = = 9,274,647

EERBEEBERAT
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 26. FEBx 4 &t B — 4"
(b) Post-listing share options — continued (b) LSRR E—&
Number of share options
BEENE

Outstanding Granted ‘Exercised  Adjustment Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise

at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price
Type of participants 2013 the year the year the year the year 2014 grant per share Exercise period

RIS-Z% RZZ-mE

mA—-H ZA=t-H 14
SHEER RFRTE FREH ERTTE FRHE FREN RFTHE RHAM fiEm T
Employees 459,739 - - - - 459,739 13 July 2006 HK$3.61 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
&8 ZEERE 3618 —BEAELATZAE
tAt=A “E-AELATZR
1,042,253 - - - - 1,042,253 21 March 2007 HK$2.94 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZBRLE 2947 “EBtEZf-t-HE
=A=1-H “Z-tFZH=tH
8,200,000 = (3,050,000) = (4,700,000) 450,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to

29 March 2019
“EENE 058 ZBBAFAB=THE

=B=tH ZE-AEZAZTAA
21,574,648 s = s - 21574648 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
Z2-%F 1128n —B-BFZA-+ZRZ
=Bt+IH ZE-RFZACTZA
49,500,000 - (49,500,000) - - - 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
“E--f 01687 “E-Z%-f-HE
t=A=1-A ZE-ZFtZh=t-H

110,951,287 - (73,450,000 - (4,700,000) 32,801,287

Weighted average exercise price HK$0.49 - HK$0.19 - HK$0.50 HK$1.16

METETEE 04937 0.19%5% 0.50%7 11687
i As at 31 March 2014, 3,900,000 post-listing share B R-ZZE—MWNE=ZA=+—8H"
options have been exercised to which ordinary shares 3,900,000 £ i1 A BE AR #E B 1T
have not been allotted. Those ordinary shares were FEMERERBEEBER 2SS
subsequently allotted in April 2014. BREZER-Z—NFMAR

%0
The post-listing share options outstanding at 31 March R-ZE-—NFE=A=+—HEKT
2014 had weighted average remaining contractual life fEz LB RE 2 EF G R ER
of 1.42 (2013: 1.38) years. ERHRBINE(ZE—=F:
1.38%)

'I 68 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options — continued

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

The Group recognises the fair value of share options
granted as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when they were granted with a corresponding increase
being recognised in share-based payment reserve. The
employee share-based payment reserve is transferred
to share capital and share premium, together with
the exercise price, when the option holder exercises
its rights. As a transitional provision, the cost of share
option granted after 7 November 2002 and had not yet
vested on 1 January 2005 were expensed retrospectively
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the respective periods.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, nil (2013:
approximately HK$1,284,000) share-based payment

expenses were recognised.

Share options granted under the pre-listing share
options scheme are not expensed as the options were
all granted and vested before 7 November 2002 and
not subject to requirements of HKFRS 2.

The estimated fair value of each option granted on 13
July 2006, 24 July 2006, 21 March 2007, 30 March
2009, 18 March 2010 and 30 December 2011 are
approximately HK$0.226, HK$0.0188, HK$0.0384,
range from HK$0.012 to HK$0.021, range from
HK$0.036 to HK$0.062 and HK$0.0058 respectively.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

26. fRRR MRt ®I— 48
(b) EmiEmEaiE—i&
B & -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AEEBRBERERLESESRESE
mREMEERERABRRAE R
HEREZAFEAIH IR
DR AEM A RFEERAER
HEEM-ESEURDAEER -
RREEIRBRESEATE
HEANSERTHEEERZRAN
RBDEE - ERBIEMER R
—EEF+—-AtA%ZRE B
R-ZEZHEF-—A—HEARE
ZEEERATREESE 2R
cEEREZEKRERAERN
BRe-RBE-Z-—NE=A=1+—
BLEEE B8 (Z2— =%
1,284,0007% 7t ) A BR 19 B B 7 43
RZHXE TR

AR £ AT i RAESH IR H
ZEREANR-ZEZT_F1+-A8
THAREREYER L RRE
7B B 75 R 5 E B BB 25 PR - 30
EBXHZEBRE-

RZZEERFLA+=H =FF
ANELtAZ+HmA - ZBEFLF
A=t+—H —ZZAF=A=+
B-ZE-—FF=A+NBAEK=
E——F+-A=+HABEZE
NEREZESAFEIBNA
0.2263% 7T+ 0.0188 T + 0.0384
BTN F0.01258 7T £0.02158
7t~ A F0.0363%8 Jt £0.0627%8 T
$0.00585% JT °

[11 <
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31 March 2014 —Z—WFE=A=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

26.

(b) Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(i) = continued

B B 40 £ B —
(b) i W A% 4 — 48
MisE: — &
(i) —#&

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were

as follows:

RFPEDUA-—BAXBEEEER
SE - HZEABWMAZERMNT

Share option grant date

BRERHAY
13 July 24 July 21 March 30 March 18 March 30 December
2006 2006 2007 2009 2010 2011
ZE3XE ZE3XE - 4 332 ZEZhE Z-%% 3§
Date of grant i A& tB+=A +tA=+mMAE Z=A=+-H ZA=+H ZAt+NB +ZHA=tH
Stock asset price RHEER HKS0.83% 7t  HKS0.82BR  HKSO.STET  HKS0.03#7  HKS0.098%7  HK$0.128%7
Exercise price fifeE HK$0.627 87 HK$0.62B7  HKSO.STBT  HKS0.05B7T  HKSO.M7ET  HK$0.160E T
Expected volatility EHRE 57.06% 44.89% 119.62% 100.13% 95.53% 53.02%
Risk-free rate EEBEE 3.984% 3.830% 3.682% 1.62% 1.68% 0.25%
Expected dividend yield AR S ER 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily prices over the one year immediately
preceding the grant date. The above calculation is
based on the assumption that there is no material
difference between the expected volatility over the
whole life of the options and the historical volatility of
the shares set out as above.

Because the Binomial Option Pricing Model requires
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(iv)  As at 31 March 2014, 32,801,287 (2013: 110,951,287)
share options are exercisable.

(vy In accordance with the terms of share-based
arrangement, the share options granted on 30 March
2009 are exercisable in the following manner:

(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 30
September 2009 to 30 March 2010;

(b)  up to further 30% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
31 March 2010 to 30 March 2011; and

(¢) all the remaining 30% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2013, and in
each case, not later than 29 March 2019.

26. fRRR MRt ®I— 48
(b) EmiEmEaiE—i&

MieE: —4&

(ivy RZZE—WUE=A=+—H °F
THEZERESE 532,801,287
B (== —=%:110,951,287
%) o

REUARGBER LI 2 FR

H=

EENE=ZA=TAEHEN

BRETERUTARTE:

(a)

BRZA0%ERFEEEREA
ZERETE-ZTTAEH
B=tAgzgE-_ZE—F
F=ZA=1+HTE:

IR Z30%E BT R &
RAZBREATE-Z-F
FZA=t—HIIZEE=
T——F=ZH=+HTE:
®

2 T30%E T F R E
BAZEREITE T ——
F=ZA=+—HHBZEBE=
E—=HF=A=+H{T"
HEREBERTAEER_-Z
—hWE=A=tHAATME-

EEBREEBERAT
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(vi)

In accordance with the terms of share-based

arrangement, the share options granted on 18 March

2011 are exercisable in the following manner:

(a)

up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March
2010 to 22 March 2011;

up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2011 to 22 March 2012;

up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2012 to 22 March 2013; and

all the remaining 20% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 23 March 2013 to 22 March 2014, and in
each case, not later than 22 March 2015.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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B &

(vi)
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27. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value

received and receivable from third parties in connection with

the retail and wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical

products, provision of general hospital services and

healthcare and hospital management services, after

allowances for returns and trade discounts. An analysis of

the Group's turnover and other revenue is as follows:—

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

27. BEREAREMI S

EXFENTERMBROHEYUR
REGESHBRERERBEEREREE
BRBEURERE=ZF2FRZEER
BHBRREREZITHR) A&EEHZ
EEERAEMBE ZOMOT

2014 2013
—ZE—MmF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Turnover: 4 1
Retail of pharmaceutical and related BZYRHEBREMTE
products 238,100 212,521
Wholesale and distribution of ZYRHEEDMER D H
pharmaceutical and related products 1,854,374 1,666,543
Provision of general hospital services R4S MR RIS 150,685 141,525
2,243,159 2,020,589
Other revenue: Hthh & :
Bank interest income RITRBE WA 925 717
Realised gain on financial assets BRAFEEBERVEZUEEE
at fair value through profit or loss pA=E-SENE 117 =
Loan interest income ERA B WA 2,390 2,323
Rental income HEUWA 2,373 1,410
Exhibition income =1 ON 2,816 4,505
Sundry income FETE U A 1,637 1,421
10,258 10,376
EEERBEEEEBRAT

2013/2014 FE 3R
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28. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:

28. EERB AN

REXEBRFDEMRTSIRE RER:

2014 2013
—ZE—mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHBT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 29) EEME (FFaE29) 2,739 3,047
Share-based payment expenses URHAEREZFREAX - 1,284
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme  Hth & T 2 E K& K5 2 E =
contributions 10,399 8,704
Other staff costs Hh8 TR 86,369 78,808
99,507 91,843
Auditors’ remuneration ZE &
— audit services — &5t IR 1,300 900
- non-audit services — EHF TR 2,169 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B 5 & H {th FE Uk 5018
trade and other receivables BRZEEEE 1,863 989
Cost of inventories sold EEFEHRA 1,944,985 1,753,215
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &} & 7k 78 # 85 1,257 1,224
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- BERIEBINE
equipment — owned by the Group —HASEEAR 10,551 10,545
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERRB2ZEER
plant and equipment - 276
Operating lease rentals in respect of RITREFILKEHERS
land and buildings 23,160 19,927
Loss on early redemption of REBOALEEZER
promissory note 16,269 1,389
and after crediting: BiEEtA -
Other income: HAbUg A -
Exchange gain [ 5 U & - 110
Change in fair value of investment REMEATFERY
properties _ 492
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BRERKB 2R E
equipment 299 -
Change in fair value of derivative FTEEMIACZATFEEZSE
financial instruments 315 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in  Fi & 5 &k E M E WK IBRR ZRE
respect of trade and other receivables B R E 746 551
1,360 1,153

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of every director for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 are set out below:

Salaries and
Fees other benefits
g FRRAMES
2014 2013 2014 2013

Z2-mF -2 Z®-WEF C-E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT TEn TER TR

29.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

EEME
ZREENBE_ZE-NER_T—=%
=B=t—HBLEFEZHFWNBERET W

T:
Retirement
Share-based benefits scheme
payment expenses contributions Total
URHBERZ HRAX BRFRAGHHER it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZZ-mE -3-=F ZZ-ME -Z-=F ZZ-ME -3F-=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TR TET TET

Executive directors BTEE
Yung Kwok Leong SES ([§%%])

("Mr. Yung") - - 720 720 - - 15 14 735 734
Chen Jin Shan R - - 60 60 - 80 - = 60 140
Jiang Tao EE - - 360 360 - 60 - B 360 40
Zheng Gang it - 2 1,085 1172 - 108 15 14 1,100 1,294
Weng Jiaxing (resigned on ~ SME (R=2-=%

28 December 2012) tZA=tNH

) - - - 270 - 76 - " - 357
Huang Jiaging EME - - 120 120 - 16 - - 120 136
- - 2,345 2,702 - 340 30 39 2,375 3,081
Non-executive directors ~ FH{TEE
Wong Yu Man, James INR - - 120 120 - - 6 6 126 126
Independent BUEBRTES

non-executive directors
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne RS 18 60 - - - - - - 18 60
Hu Shanlian HEH 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
Lu Chuanzhen EEH 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60

238 180 - - - - - - 238 180
238 180 2,465 2,822 - 340 36 45 2,739 3,387

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Yung was also the
chief executive officer of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive officer as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors or chief executive officer has
waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year (2013: Nil).

BE-E-—NER=-S—=-"F=A=1+—
ALEFE ARAZHTESHILESS
RABZITHAHE -

RAFE  AEBYEQEEHETETH
ABXIME ARSI EMBREENER
MERTHEBEE -REESHEET
BHAEBRAFERREAHE (ZF—=
FIE) -

EEBRBEEBERAT
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CLEE:E R

31 March 2014 =&—MFE=H=+—H

30. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Senior management emoluments and five highest
paid employees

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
two (2013: three) directors. Details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2013: two) non-

directors, highest paid employees are as follows:

30. ERE&

ERETEEARHERIBESHESR

FREEBRSHFEABERE (Z2—=
FZR)EF - BEZMEFHEARSE
B BHRERMEE29

BE—_Z-—NE=A=1+—HILFE &
T=2(ZE—=F MRB)IEEZH
SHEECHMEFBNT

2014 2013
—ZE—MmE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FH& T
Basic salaries and allowances EZIK%*?%&)‘?EE 1,901 1,385
Retirement benefits scheme EBARBRIGTEHI
contributions 45 29
1,946 1,414
The number of these non-director, highest paid employees ZEHESRSHFEEZCMEBERT
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as VlENER
follows:
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —E-=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 T 3 2
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30. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS - continued 30. EEM & — &

The emoluments of the senior management (excluding KAAFZEREBAE (TEEEE)Z
directors) of the Company are within the following band. e BR T HIEE -
2014 2013
—Z—MmE —E—=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,00078 7T 1 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAEAFEE AEFTEODSREEAESR
the senior management or the five highest paid individuals hAEEEHFALTZNME UKSIHE NE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AEESREAMNBRS BB FHE-

compensation for loss of office.

None of the senior management or the five highest BESREBEAERIERSFHALTR
paid individuals has waived or has agreed to waive any TEEEHESREREEAME (=2
emoluments during the year (2013: Nil). —=F: )
31. FINANCE COSTS 31. BB RHA
2014 2013
—B2-mNE  —Z-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THExT
Interest on: LTIERZAE:
— interest expenses on bank —~-BREFREZHEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable RITEEZFERX
within five years 6,015 4,090
— interest expenses on convertible —ARBREE2FEMAX
note 515 475
— interest expenses on promissory —EAREECANEREX
note 3,963 5,723
10,493 10,288
ZEBREEERA A
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32. TAXATION 32.

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year as the Group
has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong (2013: Nil).
Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

MR
AEBNDEZERAAEEKE AR AHE
REERtREELENREZAEAER
ZaRNBEEYRTE - HRAKEL
BERERELERRBERN (ZF—=F:
) AhYERAFERSHBHRERA
ﬁ%%ﬂ STHAELERE Hibth ' 2 R
RBNDREAEEXBEMERR2ER
Eh REREMZREMRTHERGTE

2014 2013
—E—QmEF =EE==
HK$'000 HK$°000
THER TERT
Current taxation: BN EARR IR :
Provision for the year KEERE
— The PRC —HE 25,746 22,581
Under provision in prior year: tEERETE
— The PRC —HE 1,151 229
Withhold tax paid/(refund) B/ (BER) ZFEMH 2,383 (612)
Deferred tax during the year (Note 25)  SFRIEFEFR B (HfzE25) (64) (57)
29,216 22,141

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. TAXATION - continued

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2014

32. RIE— 18

AEEREAXHEGSBEERAMEE

U 34 5% B S BRBEAT R 2 R 20 T

BE_Z—NFE=A=1+—HILFE

Hong Kong the PRC Total
Ei& hE -y
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THT % THT % TET %
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (BE) R (38,885) 105,555 66,670
Tax at applicable income tax rate RERREHESE2HE (6,416) 16.5 26,389 25.0 19,973 30.0
Tax effect of expenses and income AANBRBEHR AL
not deductible or taxable for tax RBAZHBEE
purposes 3,804 (9.8) (569) (0.5) 3,235 4.9
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR - - 1,151 1.1 1,151 1.7
PRC withholding tax paid B R EENE 2,383 6.1) - - 2,383 35
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KREERZHBFE 2
HBE 2,548 (6.6) (74) (0.1) 2,474 3.7
Tax charge and effective tax rate AEERBI L RERS =
for the year 2,319 (6.0) 26,897 25.5 29,216 43.8
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_E—="%=A=+—HIFE
Hong Kong the PRC Total
BB H @5t
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TEx % TET % Tz %
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBEAT (B518) R (26,745) 99,428 72,683
Tax at applicable income tax rate RERMEHETE2HE (4,413) 16.5 24,857 25.0 20,444 28.1
Tax effect of expenses and TANBHBEMB 2R
income not deductible or RBAZHBZE
taxable for tax purposes 1,848 (6.9) (2,207) (2.2) (359) (0.5)
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETR - - 229 0.2 229 0.4
PRC withholding tax refund ERPHBMH (612) 2.3 = - (612) (0.8)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KRERRBEE 2 HBEHE 2,508 (9.4) (69) (0.1) 2,439 33
Tax charge and effective tax rate AEERBEXIHRERHE
for the year (669) 2.5 22,810 22.9 22,141 30.5
EEEREEARA A
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32. TAXATION - continued

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RRRAEG FECEMESHRLIERSB
WH-IZENF-—F—AREN - FED
EBHESIA—RIINE  BFEETR
REBEBRRERNMNECENAESRESR
—525% °

REFEEEFRERE BB N\F -
A—HE BHEREPERINDEEZ
SEENFEFERMOEN N EEN
REH RSB 10%WFEMFTISH - H R
EEBEMALEFEAEZEFELAE
DR REHNREE  BERSPNWEE
BRE - ARAKEETENHWELRHDH
—HEEEEMBEYINREERARE
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33. PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 33. X NFIRBAEWEAF Hi&
OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 March 2014, net profit of B —_FE-—NUE=A=+—HILFE &
approximately HK$71,832,000 (2013: net loss of FEEEA71,832,000/8 T (=& —=
approximately HK$7,649,000) has been dealt with in the B8 F 28 47,649,000/ T) B R A A T
financial statements of the Company. 2B REIE o

34. EARNINGS PER SHARE 3. BIREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KATEEAELESBRERR BEEF
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TREU T 8IS

following data:

2014 2013
—Z—mE —F—=
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFHET FET
Earnings aF
Profit for the purpose of basic and AUGHEERERARBERRNZ
diluted earnings per share i A
— Profit for the year attributable to - WNECIE 2N
the owners of the Company PEAL 7R £ R A 21,913 42,740

No. of shares No. of shares

KA B& 13 S B
‘000 ‘000
T TR
Weighted average number of ordinary FHUFHEEREARRBR 2
shares for the purpose of basic =R R R S 19 =
earnings per share
— Ordinary shares in issue - BRTEER 1,103,672 1,063,444
— Preference shares in issue —-BRITELER 336,096 118,994
1,439,768 1,182,438
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBEEBRARTE:
shares:
— Share options issued by the —RATRITZERE
Company - 16,501
Weighted average number of ordinary HIUHESREERER 2
shares for the purpose of diluted B IR IR 5 &
earnings per share 1,439,768 1,198,939

EEBREEBERAT 181
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34,

35.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the
Convertible Note and outstanding share options under the
New Share Option Scheme existed at 31 March 2014 as the
exercise of the Convertible Note and the post-listing share
options would increase earnings per share, and therefore are

anti-dilutive.

3. BREB T - 1®

BE-_Z-NE=A=+—HLEFE &t
EEREERABIYEBRTERA=S
—MNE=A=1+—HEEFEZTERARE
BRFBREASETZHRTERER
B ETETRREER LHEABRES
SERBAEM EMERRBETE-

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the calculation of BE-_Z—=H=ZA=+—BLEE
diluted earnings per share did not assume the exercise of the AEEREBERANBYEBRITENS
Convertible Note existed at 31 March 2013 as the exercise of Z—=F=ZA=+t—HERFEZTER
the Convertible Note would increase earnings per share, and ZE FATEUTEREESSERERE
therefore is anti-dilutive. o EmEEREESE-
DIVIDENDS 35. K2
2014 2013
—Z—MmE —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FiERT
Dividend recognised as distribution REEBRRBDIRZKRE
during the year
2013/14 special interim dividend of —E-—= /-NEEHFERES
HK$1.20 per share B%1.20%8 T 283,785 -
On 16 August 2013, a conditional special interim dividend R-ZZE—=FENA+xH EFEEIRE

was declared by the Board to be satisfied through a
distribution in species by the Company of approximately
36.47% of the issued share capital of the Wanjia Group after
the capitalisation and reorganisation, subject to the spin-off
condition (that is the listing sub-committee of the board of
the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the shares of Wanjia Group on the Stock Exchange)
(the “Distributions”).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35.

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS - continued 35.

The listing approval was obtained on 10 October 2013,
and on the same date, approximately 36.47% of the shares
of Wanjia Group were distributed to the owners of the
Company pursuant to the Distributions and the shares of
Wanjia Group were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 October 2013.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

PLEDGED ASSETS 36.

At the end of the reporting period, the followings assets

were pledged to secure the Group's banking facilities:

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

B B — &
EA#MEER=-ZE—=F+A+HESE"
EESERHM2#H36.47% 2 RED KR
BEDKRFAARZEBEA MBEEE
ZRHER-_ZB—=F+A+—BEH
RArER Lo

EETERZERNEBEEZE=-ZE—NE=A
Et—HLEFEZRHERE (=& —
F/E)o

EEHEE
%ﬁ¢ K FHAECAETAEEY
$RAT R T LUIE 37 o

The Group
*EE

2014 2013
—B-mFE —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Pledged bank deposits 2IRIFRITER 17,431 3,609
Prepaid lease payments (Note 8) FEAHERE (HiEE8) 1,979 =
Investment properties (Note 9) REYE (H7E9) 8,306 -
27,716 3,609
ZEBREBEERA A
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group were committed to make the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
rented under non-cancellable operating leases with lease

terms from one year to ten years which fall due as follows:

37. BEHRAIE
AR E BRI £ b AT 2 T T B8
EEBE CAMA—FE+F)TAMT
ARBEBSARREME :

The Group
F5E

2014 2013
—ZET—mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —F R 19,492 18,657
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZhE (BEEEWE) 29,450 35,276
Over five years BB AF 2,613 3,462
51,555 57,395

38. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) On 10 April 2013, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Mr. Yung, pursuant to
which, Mr. Yung has agreed to subscribe for and
the Company has agreed to issue 504,201,680 non-
redeemable convertible preference shares (the “Second
Batch CPSs”) at the total issue price of HK$120 million
to set off against HK$120 million principal amount
of the Promissory Note. The Second Batch CPSs were
issued on 10 October 2013.

(b) A special dividend, by way of a distribution in specie
of approximately 36.47% of the issued share capital of
Wanjia Group after the Reorganisation at HK$1.20 per
share upon its separate listing on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, of approximately HK$283,785,000
was distributed on 10 October 2013 (Note 35).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

38. FR&XH

(a)

R-ZE—=FWA+H A&QaFE
ShRETURBEBHZ B §
SERERBMAATCEAZELT
504,201 680@7[\7,@;2@7#%{%
R ([FE-#HA@REELER]) -

2171 4120,000,0005& 7T - wm
AN ZE 2R $%8120,000,000
ToBE AR ELERER=-Z
—=5+HA+H#ET

ZREYHSIKREZEBREALAR
ZEBEITHRAN3I6.47%H R
H A B AP EARE S £ R A
ZEBRI1208 T 25 R P HERE
283,785,000 TER=E—=
+ A+ BiR{S (HEE35) °
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees. Since 1 June
2012, both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions
are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company's PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had entered into the following
transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of
the directors, were carried out in the ordinary course of the
Group's business:

(a) Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management
represented amount paid to the Company’s directors as
detailed in Note 29 as follows:

39.

40.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

B iR FIEt R
AEBMAEBEBECEREER AT
MABEE([5HE]) -FHEzEEHR
AEBZEEIBREE FABRGEAE
il 2 B & o N EE B 12 5 B 5 Bl Bk AR5 % [a)
FEME EETSHEEAREMR B
E-——_FRA-AUR FEEREEZE
fEH 2 R LRI BE A1,250/8 T °

AABHEMBARZEESTEBRMA
ERCHARERRABANFERE - A0
AZzFEMBARARFTHNRAX2E T
B 20 tb @) 3R R 48 R 5t 8 4K A AT R K
B REBMBEABREE 2 E—FE
RREBFEMEHPIFEHRR

EXHEALERS

BREaMBRRAMHIFEZIRER
BmERNFRAEEBEBAEALET
TIRZ EFRB ZEXZIREAE
EzRAEXBBREPET:

() EEEEAR

FTEEEASHFMELINFEALA
EE2o B (FERRME29) 0
T:

2014 2013
—ZT—pmF —=F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET F#E T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERER 2,739 3,047
Share-based payment expenses DR AERNRZEAX - 340
2,739 3,387
ZEBREBEERA A
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS - continued
(b) On 14 March 2014, Mr. Yung has entered into a

(c)

personal guarantee agreement with China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited to secure banking facilities
on behalf of the Group in an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB10,000,000 for one and a half year.
Banking facilities secured by personal guarantee of Mr.
Yung have not been utilised as at 31 March 2014.

Mr. Yung had also entered into a personal guarantee
agreement on 30 November 2011 with Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank to secure short-term
banking facilities and bills payable on behalf of the
Group in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB50,000,000 for the period from 14 November
2011 to 14 November 2012.

Mr. Weng lJiaxing, an ex-director of the Company,
who resigned on 28 December 2012 had entered
into a personal guarantee agreement on 30 October
2012 with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited to secure banking facilities on behalf of the
Group in an aggregate amount of RMB10,000,000 for
two years. Secured bank borrowings of approximately
HK$12,359,000 secured by personal guarantee of Mr.
Weng Jiaxing had been fully settled during the year.

During the year, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties:

40. EXFEALTZ S — 18

(b)

(c)

RZE-—NE=A+WA %
EERAPERITRHG AR D FE L@
AERBZ AR RAEEIKFE
F# A AR%10,000,0007T 2 R 1T
mE %ﬂ—¢¥ R-ZE-—WE=
B=+—8B USEEZBAER
WﬁﬁZﬁwﬂéEﬁi@mo

BAREFR=F——F+—-HA=+
HEEERARBERRITILEARE

RipE URBE=-F——F+—F8
tTHBEE=Z-—=-f+—-A+MA

IEHBAREAEEREREAEIAAR
#£50,000,000t ZEHiRITEER
EAZEE-

R=ZZB-——F+=-A=+/\BHEE
ZEMBEE (KRATZ2—BAIE
E)ER=-_ZE——-F+A=1+HHE
FETREIRITRMERD BRI —
BEANERBBEUARKRATEBEE
BEMFHASEEARKY10,000,000
TRBTEE -FEMBBITERLY
12,359,000 T I A N % 4 2
BAERERFE HEREKTFER

FR-AEEHEHBEEA LI ZRS W
T

2014 2013
—2-mE —ZT—=
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
AEALRE XHHtH FERT FHET
Non-controlling shareholder of Edward Management fee paid
Hospital Company Limited 1,937 1,243
EEEREERBRATRZIFERRR ENEEE
Spouse of Mr. Yung Rental fee paid 97 -

HEEZERRB [EAREk
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40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS - continued

For the transactions constitute connected transactions under

41.

o=

31 March 2014 —Z&—

B 5 R R MY &

mME=F=+—H

40. EXFEALTZ S — 18

GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected Transactions”

under

“Report of the Directors”.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) General information of subsidiaries

41.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2014

are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

RBRBRAXZRETRAUVZERZ B KE

BEXSME

E2REEEREIAT

ZIBEXRS]-

FTERBLF
() MEBLARZ—REH
AARAR=B-NE=A=+—H

ZEEMBLF (

2HEARATF)

HBEWT:

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
BRTR
ERsL BERER FREEE
MELERE B/ EEME EMESEE RS FERH
Fujian Maidsen Enterprises The PRC RMB40,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Company Limited* hospital management services
BREBAREXARLT! e A K #40,000,0007 100% RHEBEREREERE
Edward Hospital Company Limited*  The PRC RMB40,000,000 55%  Provision of general hospital
services
ERERZERARLR P AR #40,000,0007 55% REGAUBRRE
Jiaxing Shuguang* The PRC RMB15,000,000 55%  Provision of general hospital
services
EEBR e AR#15,000,0007 55% REGEUBRRE
Zhuhai Zhongkangan Enterprises The PRC HK$3,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Management Limited?* hospital management services
KERRZEXERARAT" e 3,000,000 7& 100% REBEREREERE
Wanjia Group Cayman Islands HK$6,484,000 63.53%  Investment holding
BEERE HEHS 6,484,000 1T 63.53% REER
Hui Hao (HK) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 63.53%  Investment holding
25 (88) BE 1,000,000/ 7T 63.53% REER
EEREEEEFRLF 187
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED

(a) General information of subsidiaries

- continued

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2014

are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

41. T EMELT — &

(a) MEBARZ—HREH-&

ARAR=B-MWE=A=+—A
ZEEWEAT (2BBERLA)
BEMT :

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
BETR
300 BREER FREES
MELERE B/ EEBE EMEXEE BBk FERE
Fuzhou Huihao* The PRC RMB60,000,000 63.53%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
BME T HE AE#60,000,0007T 6353% RPBEZENHBERDHEK
Putian Huihao* The PRC RMB 10,000,000 63.53%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
BHESF HE AE#10,000,0007 6353% RABEIZENMHERDHER
Fujian Huiming* The PRC RMB20,000,000 63.53%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
BEEH HE AE#20,000,0007 6353% RPEZENHBRDHER
Huihao Sihai* The PRC RMB15,856,000 63.08%  Pharmaceutical retail chain
business in the PRC
ZRmE HE AE#15,856,0007T 63.08% RABEZENTEEHEEK
Quanzhou Huihao* The PRC RMB 10,000,000 63.53%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
FME HE AE#10,000,0007 6353% RABEIZENMHERDHER
i The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this 2 RIBEPXER 2R REEM

report, where indicated,

is included for information

only, and should not be regarded as the official English
names of such Chinese names

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED 41. EEMBELTF - 1&

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

(b) REXFRZRERZFZEM

BRaTZER
TRESIFEBEAFERER 22X
SEZFEEMNBLRZFE:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting rights
principal place of held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BREIHER HEREARFRRERFREL
G NGES TEERBE BREZLH FREFBRERZERN RUFERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
2-mE —E-ZF —Z-mE —E-=f —2-mF —E-Zf%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TR
Wanjia Group (note) The PRC 36.47% 0.71% 10,555 142 384,430 439
EE5E (W) i
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests 41,740 40,535
BEFEREEZEAFEANBAR
426,170 40,974
Note: Fff &

The non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Wanjia
Group, represented Wanjia Group Holdings Limited, an
investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, and its subsidiaries as a group as a result of the
Reorganisation (Note 2), for purpose of this Note.

RAMEMS AABZF2ERBEL
ABEEE(NBEEZEEERERA
A —ERHASREEMA L ZREE
BRAR)REMB LA EEA (KMfaE2)
miER—EKE -

EEBRBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling interests

- continued

Summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial

41. T EMELT — &

(b) REXFZRERZFZEM

BABZEE &

FHRBEREAFERESZAEH
ZHE DRz M BER MRS W
T-THHBENBEDIRERNE

information below represents amounts before BLRD 2 & H o
intragroup eliminations.
Wanjia Group BEEXE
2014 2013
—2—mEF —2—-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THT
Current assets RBEE 621,814 581,707
Non-current assets FRBEE 810,905 809,216
Current liabilities REBEE 386,996 1,257,722
Non-current liabilities FRBERE - =
Equity attributable to owners of RABEE AEGEESR
the Company 661,293 132,762
Non-controlling interests FERES 384,430 439
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e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —F=8=+—H
41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 41. T EMBLAT — 8
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) BEFEXRFEREEZIIFZEM
that have material non-controlling interests BATGZHE—&
- continued
2014 2013
—E—MmE =F—=
HK$'000 HK$'00_0
T#ET FET
Revenue Uk = 2,096,455 1,885,369
Profit for the year FE&EA 49,068 41,905
Profit attributable to owners of RN REE AELGF
the Company - 38,513 41,763
Profit attributable to non-controlling  FE12 IR A 25 FE 1 S5 A
interests 10,555 142
Profit for the year FEa A 49,068 41,905
Other comprehensive income RRAREEB A .
attributable to owners of the FE 4k E At 2 T W =
Company 4,447 1,499
Other comprehensive income IR
attributable to non-controlling FEAE H A 2T Uk &=
interests 28 3
Other comprehensive income AEEHME2E WS
for the year 4,475 1,502
Total comprehensive income AATEEARE2EWREZEE
attributable to owners of
the Company - ) 42,960 43,262
Total comprehensive income FERERELEEZENRERHE
attributable to
non-controlling interests 10,583 145
Total comprehensive income AEE2HEWREE
for the year 53,543 43,407
Dividends paid to non-controlling ENFERERZRE
interests 179 3,047
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RELETE2EHE
operating activities R GRt) F58 8,942 (46,885)
Net cash outflow from investing RERETB2EHESREFHE
activities (5,640) (1,521)
Net cash inflow from REMETEBZRESARANFE
financing activities 8,918 29,239
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BEAAN CGRd) 58 12,220 (19,167)
SERAEMERAT 10
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 41. EEMEBAF — &
(c) Significant restrictions () EXERH
Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC RABERZEEARB2REREMNF
are subject to local exchange control regulations. A S #h S E B R I T AR BR o
These local exchange control regulations provide for 2% B i HhE B IR B A P B
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC, other HERRBEHRS (BREBEERE
than through normal dividends. h) e
42. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. REmEER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBEEHEAUBRAEE2ER
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BEEFELE TEBEBLEERERS
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the BRARRTREABR RBEFE K
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's EECERERRERSTE -
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which REBzEAZEERER (EHhEEE
includes bill payables, bank borrowings, promissory note HEE -RITEE ALAEZEBERITRRE
and convertible note), cash and cash equivalents and equity B) REeRBAELLEEBEREAQAESR
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising BEABERE (EREFEERTREAR
issued share capital and reserves. &)
Gearing ratio BERMRLILE
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2014 and 2013 were as R-EBE-—NER-ZF-—Z=Ff=A=1+—
follows: HeEESBLRNT:
2014 2013
—Z—MmEF =—2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Debt (note (a)) % (i) 200,531 252,284
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEEHER (109,849) (83,589)
Net debt B 90,682 168,695
Equity (note (b)) BRZA (Bt aE(b) ) 724,253 945,065
Gearing ratio EEBBL=E 0.13 0.18
Notes: B = -
(@) Debt comprises bill payables, bank borrowings, convertible (a) EBEXREEENERE RITEE TERE
note and promissory note as detailed in notes 20, 21, 23 and BRAREE  F15 2 B &AM EE20
24 respectively. 21 +~23Kk24 -
(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. (b) BEAEBEAEEREEARRGEE-
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

43. & TH

(a) EMIRSW

The Group The Company
F5H FoH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mE —Z2-= —E-pmE —EZ2-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TER
Financial assets MEBERE
Loans and receivables EXKERHIE
(including cash and (BRERER
cash equivalents) HEZEER) 496,045 519,416 79,613 886,867
Derivative financial PEARATEESB
instruments classified BailR2iTE
as fair value through ERIA
profit or loss 384 69 384 69
Financial assets designated EERAFEEBIES
at fair value through PR B EE
profit or loss 1,259 - - =
Financial liabilities MBERAR
Amortised cost B A 452,944 577,626 363,570 223,710

Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's

financial performance. The management manages

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(b) MBERBEEEBRRBR

AEBZEBEHZEHBEER
mEER (BREYRERRARE
) - FERRERBESER A
EEC-EREABEREAREHRER
RERANEETE  BREHAX
SEMBRRZEETNZERE
RE - EEEEEREFEZERAR
BRUAREERzZSAEREFE
i o

EERBEEBERAT
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign exchange

rates and interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using

sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is also exposed to market interest
rate risk mainly in relation to floating rate bank
borrowings (Note 21). The Group's cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of benchmark interest rate published
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the

Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Interest rate risk management — continued

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest
rate risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2014 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$131,000 (2013: HK$5,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate has
increased during current year mainly due to

increase in variable-rate borrowings.

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

43. €M T H &
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

()

5% B b — 48

FIEE R EHE— &

N E8 B 3 5 AR eI Rl 2= 4R R
LA L g 2 F 2= LB o A
m EEEEEEMEER.
WHAEZERFEEEHE KRR
KA

T X ZBURE D TIRIEIELT
ETERBERRAAZZ
MNEEREE REEMEEM
S HAMDBREAREHR
MAEECZEESENE/AS
ERGYREZ RORPEE
EEABREFERERTIERA
IURISOE B - H A E 38 g Frat
AR EEHE 2 FIREH -

fiti Kl & £ F /T BES0E B
MmArEEMmEEERFTE Al
rEEHEZE-_Z—NFE=A
=+ —HLEFEEZ NGRS
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
(ii) Credit risk

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is

arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;
and

o the carrying amount of the respective
pledged investment properties and prepared
lease payments as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location mainly arised in the PRC. As
at 31 March 2014, the Group's concentration of
credit risk by customers is approximately 15.8%
of trade receivables due from the Group's five
largest customers (2013: 12.2%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual’s trade debt and debt investments
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

43. €M TR —&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

(ii)

EHRE
R-EB-—NER-FE-—=F=
B=+—HB AEBRERSEFH
REBITEERAEERMZ
BBER ISAEERZH
BEIZESEERRIIR
=

s HBAUBHRRRMEAS
HORAMBEEZK
[EIRIERSE

s HAUBHARKMEZ

FHCERARENRR
ANHEERBEZERE
E

AEEzEHEERR R
B EEELERTRE-R=-F
—mFE=A=t+—RH X&£HE
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43. & THR-&
(b) HERBEEEARRBE—&

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(iii) KRBDRERBER

(iii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management

of the Group’s short, medium and long-term

ExEREEERDESAR
ZEREME MEBEECEY
—BeBEzRBDESRARE
HEER RUEERAEEZE
HoFHRRPEERENR

funding and liquidity management requirements. HESEEFR - AEEEB
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining REZEZRHB VITEER
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve RIBEEERME  URFEHTE
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring ARERREREEITES

forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

BREMBEEERMKEEEZER
HiER EUEERBESR

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has available RZE—NFE=A=+—H"

unutilised short and medium term bank loan AEBERDAEHR PR
facilities of approximately HK$111,164,000 TEFREEH111,164,0005% 7T
(2013: HK$32,381,000) respectively. (Z&—=4%:32,381,000/8

EERBEEBERAT
2013/2014 FE 3R
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

43. €M T H &
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii) RBELREEE-&
The following tables detail the Group's TRAMBITE 2K ERE
remaining contractual maturity for its financial RITETAURETIHELTER
liabilities as well as derivative and certain non- BEEZFGBRESHNHR 25t
derivative financial assets which are included ARBFAFETEEEAEZ
in the maturity analysis provided internally to MR UEERBESE
the key management personnel for the purpose o MIEMTEMBEEMS -
of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative TRIDERMBERE 2 KRR
financial assets, the tables have been drawn up EHEHFE (BEZESEE
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities B ERE 2R E) iR S AR
of the financial assets including interest that SEEGEREMBEEEZ
will be earned on those assets except where the BERERIN o IEITETE
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur BEMS TRREERKE
in a different period. For non-derivative financial BHERTRZEREBHZH
liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash HEBEZARBBERERET
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest REFEINERFEHESRE -
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
The Group FEE
At 31 March 2014 R-E—ME=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
mEFy Ed 1)
ERfl® —%i —ELf BBILF HeREHE BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET THET TET TET TET
Non-derivative financial ~ FfTEMBRAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk HtE[HE - 287,270 - - 287,270 287,270
Bank borrowings RITEE 8.1% 90,289 - - 90,289 88,088
Amounts due to non- B FEERERTE
controlling interests - 1,213 - - 1,213 1,213
Promissory note REEE 3.0% - 80,000 80,000 71,361
Convertible note ARREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,012
378,772 6,500 80,000 465,272 452,944
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

43. €M T H &

(b) MERREEZEARRBR &

(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii) RBELREEE-&
At 31 March 2013 R=Z2—-=%=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFH AR
BIRF = —£R —EEE BBEE HERELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER TER TER TER TER
Non-derivative financial FITERBER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B S REMENTKE - 328,639 - - 328,639 328,639
Bank borrowings RITEE 7.7% 52,104 - - 52,104 50,672
Amounts due to non- B ERERTE
controlling interests - 1,053 - - 1,053 1,053
Promissory note ARRE 3.0% - - 220,000 220,000 192,635
Convertible note ARREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 4,627
381,796 6,500 220,000 608,296 577,626
The Company P /N
At 31 March 2014 R-E—ME=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to0 Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
miEEy KR
ERf® o —Eif BELF HEREME REE
% HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
% TER TER TR THRT THT
Non-derivative financial FHEMBRAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables ZaREMENTRE - 2,940 - - 2,940 2,940
Amounts due to subsidiaries Tt B A RFE - 284,257 - - 284,257 284,257
Promissory note AAEE 3.0% - - 80,000 80,000 71,361
Convertible note ARREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,012
287,197 6,500 80,000 373,697 363,570
ZEEREEBRA A

2013/2014 FE 3R
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued
At 31 March 2013

43. €M TR —&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

(iii) REETELEEEERE &
RZE—=%=B=+—H

Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
EFY RER
ERFIE - “ZE% BBEFE BERELE BEE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER TER TERT ThERL ThEL
Non-derivative financial FTERKER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B Z REME[HE - 1,452 - - 1,452 1,452
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{TH{ B2 Fz 8 - 24,996 - - 24,996 24,996
Promissory note AAEE 3.0% - = 220,000 220,000 192,635
Convertible note AgRREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 4,627
26,448 6,500 220,000 252,948 223,710
(c) Fair value measurements () 2FEE

The following note provides information about how the
Group determine fair values of various financial assets

and financial liabilities

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on recurring basis

The following table gives information about how the
fair value of these financial assets and liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and

input used).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(c) Fair value measurements - continued
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

on recurring basis — continued

Fair value as at

RUTHRZAFE
31 March 31 March
2014 2013

—E-mE —"T-=F
ZA=+-B =B=t-H

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

43. €M TR —&

(c)

AFEH R
BiEREELOFEHEZEEN
MBRERMBARZLFE—M

Fair value  Valuation techniques

hierarchy

and key inputs

LFEEE RESERIEGABE

HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEx TERT
Financial assets
MBRE
Derivative financial instruments 384 69 Level 3 Binominal Model. Key inputs include
share price, volatility, time to
maturity and conversion price.
TEMKIA 384 69 $3% TEABRE-TERAHBEEE
HORENE S B R ERME o
Financial assets at fair value 1,259 - Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active
through profit or loss market
RAVEZEBERIRzMBEE 1,259 - AR REBTEHRB2EAE

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2, and there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities.

RBE-_Z-NER-_Z—=F=
A=+—-BLFE UMBEERY
HEBEF1RRF2H CELE AT
B EEE AXEEFIREAY
&

EE

o
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. @M TR -#&

(c) Fair value measurements - continued
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on recurring basis
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

() AFEHE-®
EHEBSAEELATFENBZE
KEMBRERMBREZ L TE

ERB BRTRAFLRESN GTA
REVBRRAVBEERTBE
BREEEE QN FEMES-

At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2013
R-Z—WMFE=A=+—H R=-ZE—=F=A=+-—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE LFEE BRTEE NEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET FTAR FTART
Financial liabilities HMBEAR
Convertible note IR EE 5,012 5,967 4,627 5,968
Promissory note AEEE 71,361 58,975 192,635 164,768

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Fair value measurements - continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 =2 —WFE=A=+—H

43. eMT AR5
(0 2FEMHE-&
REAMBEARARRZATE
HE
TREHRIDSEBERATET
B BEATETBRZEES AR

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to BIRZEMIT A2 DH:

3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2014
RIZE—ME=A=+—HZOFEER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18R E28R £33 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TETT TET
Financial assets MEBERE
Financial assets at fair B AP EEBIERYIRZE
value through profit BEE
or loss 1,259 - - 1,259
Derivative financial TEERTE
instruments - - 384 384
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2013
R-E—=F=A=1t—HZAVEE#H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ENE B2 B3 #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
Financial assets MEBERE
Derivative financial TTEEHMIE
instruments - - 69 69
EEBREEBERAT
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 43. €T R\
(c) Fair value measurements - continued (c) AFEE—E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements EIMOTFEHIEBZHIE
31 March 2014 —Z-mE=A=+-—H
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-_Z-—NE=A=+—HLHF
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as EREIRAFEFEZEREZ B
follows: T
Redemption
option
embedded in
convertible
note
CIE: Y3 %
™ ik 2z BR[O 18
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2013 R=-ZE—=FMA—H 69
Change in fair value recognised EREZEIALATEES
in profit or loss 315

At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF=F=+—H 384

204 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

e M HRRMEE

31 March 2014 —Z2—WFE=A=+—H

43. €M TR —&

(c) Fair value measurements - continued (c) AFEE—E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements EIRLAFEHHECZHIE-&
- continued
31 March 2013 —E-=f=ZA=+—H
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-ZE—=F=A=+—HLH
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as ERFEINAFEFTE2E5REEHM
follows: 5 ¢
Redemption
option
embedded in
convertible
note
AR REE
A i 2 & B #E
HK$’000
FE T
At 1 April 2012 R=ZFE——FMA—H 161
Change in fair value recognised EREEEAATFEEZE
in profit or loss (92)
At 31 March 2013 A—E—=5=ZA=+—H 69
EEBREEEERAF

2013/2014 FE 3R
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CLEE:E R

31 March 2014 =& —MFE=H=+—H

44, EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE

REPORTING PERIOD
Issue of ordinary shares in respect of exercise of

share options
On 4 April 2014, 3,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each have been issued in respect of the exercise

of 3,900,000 post-listing share options.

Completion of the proposed acquisition

On 9 April 2014, Wanjia Group, Wanjia Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary (the “Purchaser”) and Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited (former name as Xiamen Hui
Sheng Yi Yao Company Limited), a PRC pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution corporation, entered into an
arrangement agreement in relation to the conditional
acquisition of 60% of net assets value of Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited (the “Proposed Acquisition”)
by the Purchaser. The consideration for the acquisition is
approximately RMB4,945,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,204,000). Upon completion of the Proposed
Acquisition, Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Company Limited
will become a 60% owned subsidiary of the Purchaser. The
acquisition was completed on 23 April 2014 with all the
conditions precedent under the arrangement agreement

being fulfilled.

After the acquisition, Wanjia Group has engaged an
independent qualified professional valuer to measure the
fair value of the property, plant and equipment on the
completion date. Since the valuation is still in progress,
Wanjia Group is unable to measure any possible goodwill or
gain from bargain purchase as at the date of completion.
Therefore, the directors considered that it is not practicable
to disclose the financial information of Hui Hao Yi Yao
(Xiamen) Company Limited on the completion date at this

stage.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD - continued

Legal proceedings

On 12 April 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Wanjia
Group as plaintiff initiated legal proceedings against a
customer at the People’s Court of Minhou County for a sale

and purchase agreement in which the amount is immaterial.

Disposal of convertible preference shares by
substantial shareholder

On 24 April 2014, Mr. Yung and a purchaser, entered into
an agreement pursuant to which Mr. Yung agreed to sell and
the purchaser agreed to purchase, 343,217,539 convertible
preference shares of the Company for a cash consideration
of approximately HK$96,101,000. The agreement is
unconditional and is signed and completed simultaneously.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company's

announcement dated 24 April 2014.

COMPARATIVES
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 25 June 2014.
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Financial Summary
B %5 &

31 March 2014 —Z—WFE=A=+—H

For the year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
~“P-mE —FT-=F —B--F ZF--F —T-ZF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET THET TET

Result E

Turnover —E 2 2,243,159 2,020,589 1,835,776 1,463,711 179,765
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRBiAIHEA,/ (EE) 66,670 72,683 84,407 58,751 (204,913)
Taxation B1E (29,216) (22,141) (26,378) (21,541) (1,723)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERF (BE) 37,454 50,542 58,029 37,210 (206,636)

Profit/(loss) attributable to LU AL BEEER

(B#8)

— Owners of the Company —ARAREEA 21,913 42,740 49,666 31,456 (211,283)
— Non-controlling interests —ERER 15,541 7,802 8,363 5,754 4,647
37,454 50,542 58,029 37,210 (206,636)

As at 31 March

®=B=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—ZE—mE —T-—= —E-—F —E—-—§ —Z-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT FTHET FTET FTHET

Assets and liabilities BERER

Total assets HWEE 1,638,040 1,578,537 1,491,156 1,374,723 1,282,732
Total liabilities F= (487,617)  (592,498)  (551,112)  (498,025)  (545,890)

1,150,423 986,039 940,044 876,698 736,842
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